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change 2009 2008
B g Results of Operations
= 3 Turnover -12.4% 971,936 1,110,115
E A Gross profit -11.7% 592,608 671,454
EF & Gross margin 0.8% 61.0% 60.5%
2 K Profit from operations -13.5% 88,724 102,515
K R R Operating margin -1.1% 9.1% 9.2%
KEYHEME Valuation (losses)/gains on investment
(B8] W properties -197.0% (13,000) 13,400
HEREWENRE Gain on disposal of investment
properties - - 45,589
JE b B8 & D /) g Al Share of profits less losses
S 18 of associates -49.9% 17,072 34,099
AT HERRE Profit attributable to equity
JE 15 5 H) shareholders of the Company -53.1% 80,187 170,997
B = Net profit margin -46.1% 8.3% 15.4%
f& & F — &R Earnings per share — basic -53.1% $0.52 $1.11
& — #E Earnings per share - diluted -53.1% $0.52 $1.11
i 1% & Dividend per share -49.3% $0.38 $0.75
MBikR Financial Position
KEEBESE 2B Cash generated from operations -31.7% 113,415 165,977
]Re RRITFITOR Cash and bank deposits less
HHRTERK short-term bank loans and
i3 overdrafts -5.7% 224,097 237,691
mRBEEFE Net current assets -5.2% 313,801 330,883
P& 5RO Shareholders’ equity -71% 779,302 838,565
A% B = B ] Return on shareholders’ equity -49.5% 10.3% 20.4%

. BEEREFE THKI24%E9.719EB T -

. LERAABBTOB BT + MAF T 13.5% °

. A A A R AR R (R 5 R /28,0208 B T (ZE TN
F1THEERT) ERBEREMEMMERIE,300
BET(ZTEZN\F : FEKZF1,3408E ) ° it
Hh - EFEHBHEREYE W 45608 T °

Turnover decreased by 12.4% to HK$971.9 million from last year.

Profit from operations was HK$88.7 million, a decrease of 13.5% as compared with
last year.

Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company amounted to HK$80.2 million
(2008 : HK$171.0 million) which included valuation losses on investment properties
of HK$13.0 million (2008 : valuation gains of HK$13.4 million). In addition, a gain on
disposal of investment properties of HK$45.6 million was recorded last year.
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Chairman’s Statement
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Dear Shareholders,

| have pleasure in presenting the annual report of YGM Trading Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries and associates (collectively the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2009.

Group Results

The twelve month period ended 31 March 2009 presented a challenging
time for the economy as a whole and also the Group. Turnover of the
Group amounted to HK$971.9 million, representing a fall of 12.4%
compared to HK$1,110.1 million for the previous year.

Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company amounted to
HK$80.2 million as compared to HK$171.0 million for the previous year.
Profit for the year includes a net realised and unrealised loss on trading
securities of HK$2.9 million (2008 : profit of HK$4.2 million), valuation
losses on investment properties of HK$13.0 million (2008 : valuation
gains of HK$13.4 million) while our share of profits of Hang Ten Group
Holdings Limited (“Hang Ten”) and its subsidiaries and associates
decreased by 49.9% from HK$34.1 million in the previous year to
HK$17.1 million. In addition, during the prior year ended 31 March 2008,
we recorded a gain on disposal of investment properties of HK$45.6
million. Taking into account these items, the adjusted profit attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company increased by approximately
HK$5.3 million.

Review of Operations

Garment retail and marketing

The Mainland China market proved to be resilient during the global
financial meltdown. However, we are facing an increasingly challenging
environment. Every major brand in the world is now in the Mainland
China market and the local brands are also spending large sums of
money on marketing. In addition, there has been a large increase in
retail square footage caused by the development of newer and bigger
shopping malls. It is our objective to secure our own niche in the market
and maintain profitability.

Although the Hong Kong market benefited from the increase in Chinese
tourists, the large increases in rental and labour costs has actually cut
into the Group’s profitability.



MICHEL RENE

MICHEL RENEFE1976F XY - mEERESXARESR  KEERMEMH R YUEARE] BARARE -
RESHEHY  FAERAR AREANELREHE2EREBFRLENEE -

MICHEL RENER 2006 F EE E RS E BB 200558228 RENESFKLESSE -

Established in 1976, MICHEL RENE carries a full line of men’s and women’s executive and city wear, and accessories.
MICHEL RENE always maintains its integrity and contemporary style which enables young and modern people to mix-and-
match creatively for all occasions.

In 2006, MICHEL RENE achieved the ‘Hong Kong Top Brand Award 2005’ organised by the Hong Kong Brand Development
Council. The brand image is affirmed.
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Review of Operations (continued)

Garment retail and marketing (continued)
Aquascutum

As stated in the Company’s notice to the shareholders on 25 May
2009, the Group signed a letter of intent relating to the possible
acquisition of the “Aquascutum” brand from Renown Incorporated,
which is currently our licensor. As at the end of March 2009, the Group
has 153 outlets in Mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan.

Ashworth

The Group has 78 outlets in our licensed territories as at the end of
March 2009. This American golf label continues to be popular in
Mainland China.

Michel René

As at the end of March 2009, we operated 89 outlets in Hong Kong,
Macau, Mainland China and Taiwan. We have been marketing this
brand for over 30 years and are in the process of instituting plan to
revive this brand.

Guy Laroche

The Group owns the worldwide rights to this international brand, which
is held by a subsidiary with headquarters in Paris, France. The French
subsidiary receives royalties from around the world and recorded a
small profit for the year after efforts to trim operating costs.

Hang Ten

The Group owns a 20.48% interest in Hang Ten which is listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Hang Ten reported a lower profit
for the year mainly because of the devaluation of Korean Won as The
Republic of Korea is a major market for Hang Ten.



IR B E B M A AshworthiR 1987F B « = HRERH  FEMNBEZsBRXEERKRBEERE?S o & XE Darrell
Survey BB EREF © Ashworthm R RIKMA FEREE + — F(HIEE — AL © M@ HE X R 20029 £ 2005F &+
EeBR)EFELE [REEEEL B RARE | RR2001F 200745 £ % WX ECS B HE) Hi (X hR) &
BIRERREARE —RESTaBRXRE] -

A& B R Ashworth AR E [ N RE MBI - Ashworth TR N RERREER R - E2005¢12008¢%$%E
NERSEETZEEEHERE[PUEARFS —REMHYEEDRFPIARANZ2FERERBTER]
200935 A B REEFTEEMERTS : TERBEMRAFREEM]KE -

Ashworth was established in California, U.S.A. in 1987. It markets a full line of quality men’s and women’s golf apparel and
casual merchandise, featuring natural style and relaxed fit. According to the Darrell Survey of the U.S.A., Ashworth has been
ranked ‘Number One Apparel Brand in Golf" eleven years in a row. The brand was also selected as ‘My Favorite Men'’s

Apparel” by ‘China Golf’ Magazine from 2002 to 2005 and, ‘The Best Golf Awards - Best Golf Apparel (Men)” by 3 1
‘Golf Digest’ Magazine (Chinese Edition) four times from 2001 to 2007.

The Group is the licensee for the Greater China region and Thailand. Ashworth is also highly recognised
for its quality service. Ashworth was awarded the ‘Service Retailer of the Year in Fashion &

Accessories — Sports & Outdoor Products Category’ by the ‘Mystery Shoppers Programme’
during 2005 to 2008 as well as the Service Industry Leader during March 2009
to May 2009 by the Hong Kong Retail Management Association.

\{2
ASHWORTH
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Review of Operations (continued)

Other business
Garment Manufacturing

With increased operating costs in Dongguan, Mainland China and
fierce competition in a poor global economic environment, we have
embarked on stringent cost cutting in the past two years. As a result
of these efforts, the manufacturing plant reported only a marginal loss
for the year.

Property

Rental income from industrial buildings showed a decrease as we
had disposed of some industrial buildings in the previous year.
Revaluation losses on investment properties of HK$13.0 million were
recorded for the year as compared to revaluation gains of HK$13.4
million for the previous year.

Printing

With diminishing economic activity in the year, our security printing
business reported a contribution from operations of only HK$4.2
million. Considering the size of the printing operations, such a return
is considered satisfactory.

Prospects and Developments

The world economy is still in a recession and the H1N1 epidemic is
continuing to hurt tourist trade although there are signs of a minor
recovery. We anticipate the coming year to be more difficult. However,
the Company has sufficient cash resources and is actively seeking
acquisition opportunities.

Appreciation

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to take this opportunity
to express my sincere appreciation to all employees who devoted
themselves to the Group during the past year. Their contributions are
unfailing and most instrumental to the success of the Group. | also take
this opportunity to extend our gratitude to our shareholders, customers,
business partners and suppliers for their steadfast support of the Group.

Chan Sui Kau

Chairman

Hong Kong, 10 July 2009
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OF LONDON

BB AquascutumP 1851TF KL » —HERBEEN — & - MEREE
FRABFNHTTE AR TBEREHRT  AELmEBRXRERENR
ERRAEENRARE mERGABRED  ERAGCEE ERnEREFITE -
WISBREER - BEHTF > AquascutumBE X EEZE K - BUAEH - UEBAFENFR -

AEBARPEMR MK SRASRFENERE mEERERE BETHRELER
EXALTRITBARS °

Aquascutum— B BB E R E B E AR - £2004F £20065F & 2008F K& MR EEETE T IR S0 180
BEFE—REHYESAREEAN 2 2FERERBEER] -

British label Aquascutum has been a part of London city life since its establishment in 1851. Its heritage is rooted in excellent
British tailoring and it has always had a keen eye on fashion, creating an understated elegance and stylishly luxurious look.
Its sartorial confidence, authentic quality and fine craftsmanship shown in the faultless attention to detail is trusted throughout
the world. Over the decades the brand has dressed the powerful: British royalty, politicians and celebrities.

The Group is the licensee for the Greater China region, Singapore, Malaysia and Thailand. Aquascutum is positioned as an
upmarket brand and targets entrepreneurs, professionals and executives.

Aquascutum’s high standard of service is well recognised. The brand achieved the ‘Service Retailer of the Year in Fashion &
Accessories - High Fashion Category” of the ‘Mystery Shoppers Programme’ organised by the Hong Kong Retail Management
Association four times from 2004 to 2006 and 2008.
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BEESREBPEDMNER  AEELEN
FIBEMSBEHXETE AEBBRE-_ZTZTNF
AT BUEFEZEETETKI24%E
971,936,000 7t (ZZZ /A4 : 1,110,115,000
BIL) c AEBECFEEBKKHEERT T
B 12.5%% 873,405,000/% 7T (Z T ZT )\ F
998,303,000/ L) * (h4RrE & HEEEME9.9% (=
T \F 1 89.9%) ° It REEFEHRIINAE
U Z FI kB T2 AR 8 U 2= 48 §F 4&59,533,000
BIL (ZZTZT)\F : 65,145,000 7T) °

ETMARREE BT E2EAAESEE -
FR - AEBEZEFTEK11.7%=2592,608,000
T (ZEZE)\F : 671,454,000 7T) » HEE
FIE B EFHB05% EFAEBC1% o D IHAK 4R
28 0 10.4%E 367,064,000 7L (ZZEZE )N
F : 409,445,000 70) - (T EAREHRE
F 7 174,221,00078 JT 8 2 11.3% = 154,487,000
I ©

BE_ZETAF=ZA=1t—"HILEFEZKZ
i F| 3£ 88,724,000 7L - MEFHE 2K &
St K 102,515,000/ 7T T #X 13.5% °

A N B 5 A% 3R E (L 5 F1 £80,187,000
BEIL(ZZTZE )\ : 170,997,000/ 7T) » Hep
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Results of Group Operations

All our markets were affected by the financial tsunami in Asia. Turnover
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2009 decreased by 12.4%
from HK$1,110,115,000 for the previous year to HK$971,936,000. Total
sales of garments, the Group’s principal business, decreased by 12.5%
to HK$873,405,000 (2008: HK$998,303,000), representing 89.9%
(2008: 89.9%) of Group turnover. In addition, total royalty and related
income of HK$59,533,000 (2008: HK$65,145,000) was received from
external customers in the year.

A comprehensive program of cost discipline was implemented when
market conditions began to weaken. The Group’s gross profit for the
year decreased by 11.7% to HK$592,608,000 (2008: HK$671,454,000).
However, the Group’s gross margin improved to 61.0% from 60.5% for
the previous year. Total distribution costs decreased by 10.4% to
HK$367,064,000 (2008: HK$409,445,000), and, total administrative
expenses decreased by 11.3% to HK$154,487,000 from
HK$174,221,000 for the previous year.

Profit from operations for the year ended 31 March 2009 amounted to
HK$88,724,000 which decreased by 13.5% from HK$102,515,000 for
the previous year.

Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company for the year
was HK$80,187,000 (2008: HK$170,997,000) which included valuation
losses on investment properties of HK$13,000,000 (2008: valuation gains
of HK$13,400,000) and a net realised and unrealised loss on trading
securities of HK$2,904,000 (2008: gain of HK$4,208,000). In addition,
a gain on disposal of investment properties of HK$45,589,000 was
recorded in the previous year. Furthermore, the Group’s share of profits
of Hang Ten Group Holdings Limited (“Hang Ten”) and its subsidiaries
and associates (“Hang Ten Group”) decreased by 49.9% from
HK$34,099,000 to HK$17,072,000 mainly because of the devaluation
of the Korean Won in The Republic of Korea, a key market of Hang Ten
Group.
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CHARLES JOURDAN

Paris

7% B 58 2 Charles Jourdani0 1921 X » MEFEEMN R - K TATORM M Z BB - OAREAS HRKTEX
MEER  EHERBLFHREKLHRY  BRREBLBTER  BMEZRENARNRKER &K
MEDEEAR—F  BRHRAIES —2F o

AEE A Charles Jourdan@EE R EME M R oA REREMBNRIE -

Charles Jourdan is a leading French label famous for its luxury and colorful footwear. Established in 1921, the brand recently
launched its fashion apparel and accessories collection using the same passion and innovation. The new line is refreshingly
modern, luxurious, versatile and is sure to be a big hit.

The Group is the licensee of Charles Jourdan full-line apparel and accessories for the Greater China region and South East Asia.
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Business Review

Sales of garments

The Group’s core business is the manufacturing, retailing and wholesaling
of fashion apparel. Total sales of garments for the year recorded a 12.5%
decrease as compared to the previous year. Despite the garment
manufacturing plant in Dongguan, Mainland China recording a loss for
the year, contribution from operations from sales of garments rose by
2.5% to HK$90,265,000 from HK$88,058,000 for the previous year.

As of the end of March 2009, the Group had 321 outlets, mainly in the
Greater China region.

FiTh Z i [E 5 i
Breakdown of outlets by geographical location
BE HE
ZEFTAEF —EFENF +/(-)
=RA=+-—H —A=+—H FIm
As of As of +/(-)
31 March 2009 31 March 2008 outlets
i E Geographical location
HE Hong Kong 35 41 -6
B P Macau 8 8 -
a4 Taiwan 46 56 -10
REAREM Other areas of The
H b b [ People’s Republic of China 215 227 -12
BROM Europe 1 1 -
R South East Asia 16 6 10
@ast Total 321 339 -18
HME® Other business

AEFHEETREMEMERRINAEP
YA & AR A 43.8% © & & E R R B 8
EXBREBZAEMOBEFTHR -

BEAXXZH
FR - ANEBEFKE 426,621,000/ 7T 1K

FURBEREEETEE  =FAR
20,208,000/ T °

Rental income from external customers decreased by 43.8% as a result
of a disposal of investment properties in the previous year. Both turnover
and contribution from operations of the security printing business declined
from the previous year.

Capital Expenditure

During the year, the Group spent approximately HK$26,621,000 in
recurring additions and replacement of fixed assets, compared to
HK$20,208,000 for the previous year.



Guy Laroche 8 Z K EBIRE MM - U BB HERFT R o @B E A R E &5 KRB Guy LarocheR? 19564 FT
Bl - WR1961F EREHKKRZY - EERFAURBZENERABRKEMZES  BXEBENEZEREE
B EBR o Guy Larochet I RER AR MBS - BRkK W  SE8ERESMEEZA AR 2 ZMEMR °

AN £ B 7 20044F i A Guy Larochefi 2 * Guy LarocheE B+ 9 % tit - REBBHER S o

Guy Laroche is a renowned French label that has long been recognised by its signature elegant style. Established in
1956 by Guy Laroche himself, the brand launched its first ready-to-wear collection in 1961. The brand is well known
for its form-fitting cuttings, accentuating female bodyline appeal, and thus it has been popular among famous actresses
and celebrities. Guy Laroche designs are for sophisticated, contemporary and elegant ladies with an appreciation for
French style.

The Group acquired Guy Laroche in 2004 and the brand carries a full line of products. The brand has licensees for various
product categories all over the world.

Guy Laroche

PAR
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group financed its operations by internally generated cashflows
and banking facilities provided by its bankers. The Group continues to
maintain a prudent approach to managing its financial requirements.

For the year ended 31 March 2009, the Group generated
HK$113,415,000 (2008: HK$165,977,000) of cash from operations. As
at 31 March 2009, the Group had cash and bank deposits net of
overdrafts and short-term bank loans of HK$224,097,000, a decrease
of HK$13,594,000 from HK$237,691,000 as at 31 March 2008 after
payments of dividends of HK$110,759,000 during the year. At 31 March
2009, the Group had listed securities which were readily convertible into
cash with a fair value of HK$4,537,000 (2008: HK$11,923,000).

The Group’s net assets as at 31 March 2009 amounted to
HK$798,247,000 as compared with HK$860,177,000 as at 31 March
2008. The Group’s gearing ratio at the year end was 0.02 (2008: 0.05),
which was calculated based on total borrowings of HK$17,985,000
(2008: HK$45,348,000) and shareholders’ equity of HK$779,302,000
(2008: HK$838,565,000). The Group’s borrowings are mainly on a floating
rate basis.

The Group also maintains a conservative approach to foreign exchange
exposure management. The Group’s income and expenditure streams
are mainly denominated in Hong Kong Dollars, New Taiwan Dollars,
Euros, Pounds Sterling, Renminbi Yuan and Macau Patacas. To manage
currency risks, non Hong Kong Dollar assets are financed primarily by
matching local currency debts as far as possible.

As at 31 March 2009, certain investment properties with an aggregate
carrying value of HK$10,900,000 (2008: HK$53,700,000) were pledged
to banks for obtaining banking facilities of which HK$Nil (2008:
HK$1,131,000) was utilised as at 31 March 2009.

As at 31 March 2009, there were contingent liabilities in respect of
guarantees issued to banks by the Company in respect of banking
facilities extended to certain subsidiaries amounting to HK$96,966,000
(2008: HK$114,670,000). The maximum liability of the Company at the
balance sheet date under the guarantees issued is the amount of banking
facilities drawn down by the relevant subsidiaries of HK$22,633,000
(2008: HK$39,156,000).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Share Option Scheme

On 23 September 2004, the Company adopted a share option scheme
(the “Share Option Scheme”) which will remain in force until 22 September
2014. Pursuant to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the Company
may grant options to eligible participants including directors and
employees of the Group to subscribe for shares in the Company, subject
to a maximum of 15,469,879 new shares.

During the year, no share options were granted to directors and
employees of the Group and no options were exercised.

Human Resources

As at 31 March 2009, the Group had approximately 2,000 employees.
The Group offers competitive remuneration packages including medical
subsidies and retirement scheme contributions to its employees in
compensation for their contribution. In addition, discretionary bonuses
and share options may also be granted to eligible employees based on
the Group’s and the individuals’ performances.

Dividends

After due consideration of cash on hand, future investment requirements
and the economic outlook, the Board has resolved to recommend the
payment of a final dividend of HK$0.28 (2008: HK$0.32) per ordinary
share for the year ended 31 March 2009 at the forthcoming annual
general meeting to be held on Friday, 11 September 2009. The Board
does not recommend the payment of a special dividend (2008: HK$0.30
per ordinary share). The final dividend totalling HK$43,073,000 (2008:
special and final dividends totalling HK$95,376,000), if approved by the
shareholders, is expected to be paid on or around Tuesday, 15 September
2009 to those shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on Wednesday, 2 September 2009.
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Pursuant to Appendix 23 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”), the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of YGM Trading
Limited (the “Company”) presents this Corporate Governance Report
for the year under review.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Board firmly believes that corporate governance is essential to the
success of the Company and has adopted various measures to ensure
its strict compliance with relevant regulatory requirements and a high
level of transparency in corporate governance.

In the opinion of the Board, the Company has complied throughout the
year ended 31 March 2009 with the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, except that the
non-executive directors were not appointed for a specific term but are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the Company’s annual
general meetings in accordance with the Company’s articles of
association.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a Securities Dealing Code regarding director’s
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules. All Directors have confirmed, upon specific enquiry
by the Company, that they have complied with the required standard
set out in the Model Code and its Securities Dealing Code throughout
the year under review.

Board of Directors

The major responsibilities of the Board include formulation of strategic
plans, adoption of corporate strategies, assessment of investment
projects, monitoring and controlling the Group’s operating and financial
performance, and assessing and managing risk to which the Group is
exposed.

The Board comprises seven Executive Directors, being Messrs Chan
Sui Kau, Chan Wing Fui, Peter, Chan Wing Sun, Samuel, Chan Wing
Kee, Chan Wing To and Fu Sing Yam, William and Madam Chan Suk
Ling, Shirley, and three Independent Non-executive Directors, being
Messrs Leung Hok Lim, Wong Lam and Lin Keping.
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Board of Directors (continued)

The Company has appointed a sufficient number of Independent Non-
executive Directors with suitable professional qualifications, such as
expertise in accounting and financial management, in accordance with
the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company has received from
each of the Independent Non-executive Directors an annual confirmation
of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board held four meetings during the year. The attendance record of
individual Directors is as below:

HE/BITERRE

BEE Directors Meetings attended / held
PR I Bk Chan Sui Kau 474
PR ok == Chan Wing Fui, Peter 4/4
PR ok %4 Chan Wing Sun, Samuel 4/4
B BR 3% Chan Suk Ling, Shirley 4/4
BR ok B Chan Wing Kee 4/4
= Chan Wing To 4/4
A Fu Sing Yam, William 4/4
22 Leung Hok Lim 4/4
T &R Wong Lam 4/4
M F Lin Keping 4/4
ETBRITHBESR Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

EERIRRAAATRARNACTAS
S REAERRNOBREES c HESEEA
EHEOLARBERLBERERD  TH
AHAAREEARREEDONT - X
$EEE MENBEARLES - 5 ERR
BHRERD N - ARERDERHR
T M EE BABIEFERNH0ERE
R -

EREET

BRELETRUINKE  ARBAEXKEZES
HETEEBERE  ERZEER=RBY
FHTEFEK IRBRAE - ITREE
EMRFiE  TRR/RREBREL - ERZ

BEgRFREERAMAERE  HEXRED
ZH8 -

The roles of the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company are separated, with a clear division of responsibilities.
The Chairman of the Board is responsible for formulating corporate
strategies and overall business development planning. The Chief
Executive Officer’s duty is to oversee the execution of daily business
activities. The division of responsibilities at the board level is to ensure a
balance of power and authority. The Chief Executive Officer is the son of
the Chairman, details of the relationship between other Directors are
disclosed on pages 30 to 32.

Audit Committee

The Company formulated written terms of reference for the Audit
Committee in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.
The Audit Committee consists of three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Leung Hok Lim, Mr. Wong Lam and Mr. Lin Keping.
Mr. Leung Hok Lim is the chairman of the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee held two meetings during the year with an attendance rate
of 100%.
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Audit Committee (continued)

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for monitoring the integrity
of the Company’s financial statements, reviewing the Company’s internal
control system and its execution through the review of the work
undertaken by the internal and external auditors, evaluating financial
information and related disclosure, reviewing connected transactions,
and considering the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
of staff of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function,
and their training programmes and budget.

The Group’s audited financial statements, internal control system and
connected transactions for the year ended 31 March 2009 have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of two Executive Directors,
namely Mr. Chan Wing Fui, Peter (chairman of the remuneration
committee) and Mr. Chan Wing Sun, Samuel, and three Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Leung Hok Lim, Mr. Wong Lam
and Mr. Lin Keping. The Company had formulated written terms of
reference for the Remuneration Committee in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for ensuring formal and
transparent procedures for developing remuneration policies and in
overseeing remuneration packages of the Directors. It takes into
consideration factors such as salaries and compensation packages paid
by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the
Directors. It would also take into account whether the emoluments offered
are appropriate given the duties and performance of the respective
individuals concerned and whether such emoluments are competitive
and sufficiently attractive to retain such individuals.

The Remuneration Committee convened one meeting during the year
with an attendance rate of 100%.

Nomination of Directors

The Board has not established a Nomination Committee. Pursuant to
the Company'’s Articles of Association, shareholders of the Company
are entitled to propose candidates. The proposal for the appointment of
directors should be submitted at the annual general meeting for approval.
The intention for proposing director candidates and the acceptance of
nomination by the candidates should be submitted in writing to the
Company no earlier than the date of dispatch of the notice of annual
general meeting and no later than the annual general meeting. Time
limits for nomination and acceptance of nomination should not be less
than 7 days. During the year, there was no change in the composition of
the Board.
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Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements for each financial period with a view to ensuring such financial
statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group
and of the results and cash flow for that period. The Company’s financial
statements are prepared in accordance with all relevant statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. The Directors are
responsible for ensuring that appropriate accounting policies are selected
and applied consistently; and that judgments and estimates made are
prudent and reasonable.

The Directors are also responsible for reviewing the adequacy of staffing
of the financial reporting function.

The reporting responsibilities of KPMG, the Company’s auditors, are set
out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 34 and 35 of this
Annual Report.

Auditors’ Remuneration

Total auditors’ remuneration in relation to the statutory audit of the Group
amounted to HK$3,533,000 (2008: HK$3,710,000) of which a sum of
HK$2,437,000 (2008: HK$2,385,000) was paid or payable to the Group’s
principal auditor, KPMG.

The remuneration paid to the Group’s principal auditor, KPMG, and its
affiliated firms, for services rendered is as follows:

2009 2008
T BT
HK$ HKS
V& TE B % Statutory audit 2,437,000 2,385,000
IEEZRB Non-audit services 326,000 534,000
e Total 2,763,000 2,919,000
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Internal Control and Risk Management

The Board recognises its responsibility for maintaining an adequate and
sound internal control system and through the Audit Committee and an
external firm of qualified accountants to provide internal audit services
(“Internal Auditors”), conducts reviews on the effectiveness of these
systems at least annually, covering all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls, and risk management functions.
The process used in reviewing the effectiveness of these internal control
systems includes discussion with management on risk areas identified
by management. The purpose of the Company’s internal control is to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss and to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure
in operational systems so that the Company’s objectives can be achieved.

Internal Audit Function

Although there was no in-house internal audit set up during the year, the
Company engaged the Internal Auditors to review specific areas of
concern identified by management and the Audit Committee. The Internal
Auditors performed a review of the effectiveness of the system of internal
control of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2009 so as to furnish
some degree of comfort to the Audit Committee and the Board on the
reliability and integrity of the system and control process. The results of
the internal control review were submitted to the Audit Committee for
consideration. The Audit Committee has reviewed the results of the
internal control review and is satisfied that the existing system of internal
controls is effective and adequate.
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Report of the Directors

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their Annual Report together
with the audited financial statements of YGM Trading Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries and associates (collectively the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 March 2009.

Principal Place of Business

The Company is a company incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong
and has its registered office and principal place of business at 22 Tai
Yau Street, San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and the
provision of management services. The principal activities and other
particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries and associates are set out in
the financial statements on pages 119 to 122.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations of the
operations of the Group during the financial year are set out in note 13
to the financial statements.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, the Group’s sales to its five largest customers and
purchases from its five largest suppliers accounted for less than 30% of
the Group’s turnover and purchases respectively.

Financial Statements

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2009 and the state
of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date are set out in
the financial statements on pages 36 to 122.

Transfer to Reserves

Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company, before
dividends, for the year ended 31 March 2009 of HK$80,187,000 (2008:
HK$170,997,000) has been transferred to reserves. Other movements
in reserves are set out in note 29 to the financial statements.

An interim dividend of HK10 cents per ordinary share (2008: HK13 cents
per ordinary share) was paid on 15 January 2009. No special dividend
(2008: HK30 cents per ordinary share) was paid. The Directors now
recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK28 cents per ordinary
share (2008: HK32 cents per ordinary share) in respect of the year ended
31 March 2009.
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Charitable Donations

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
HK$1,143,000 (2008: HK$285,000).

Fixed Assets

Details of movements in fixed assets during the year are set out in note
14 to the financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of the Company’s share capital are set out in note 29 to the
financial statements.

There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the Company’s listed
securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year.

Directors

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors

Chan Sui Kau

Chan Wing Fui, Peter
Chan Wing Sun, Samuel
Chan Suk Ling, Shirley
Fu Sing Yam, William
Chan Wing Kee

Chan Wing To

Independent Non-executive Directors

Leung Hok Lim
Wong Lam
Lin Keping

In accordance with Articles 95 and 104 of the Company’s articles of
association, Messrs Chan Wing Sun, Samuel, Chan Wing To, Wong
Lam and Madam Chan Suk Ling, Shirley shall retire as Directors of the
Company by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The Company confirms that it has received from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors a confirmation of their respective independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) and the Company considers the Independent Non-
executive Directors to be independent.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

The Independent Non-executive Directors were appointed by the board
of Directors and their remuneration is determined by the board of
Directors, see section headed ‘Compliance with the Code of Best
Practice’.

None of the Directors who has offered himself or herself for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company has entered
into any service contract with the Company or any other member of the
Group which is not determinable by the relevant employer within one
year without payment of compensation, other than normal statutory
compensation.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in
Shares and Underlying Shares

The Directors and chief executive of the Company who held office at 31
March 2009 had the following interests in the issued shares of the
Company, its subsidiaries and other associated corporations (within the
meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) at that date
as recorded in the register of directors’ and chief executives’ interests
and short positions required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO:

(1) Interests in issued shares

9 % T {E 0.507% jT 1Y i i %
Ordinary shares of HK$0.50 each

Bl A RiEHER AT R Hib i
Personal Family Corporate Other
interests? interests interests interests

EXXH#LE  Beneficial interests
B I BR Chan Sui Kau 4,929,272 214,368 3,840,820 (i
bR ok ZE Chan Wing Fui, Peter 324,068 3,820,420 - (i), (iii) & (iv)
B ok 4% Chan Wing Sun, Samuel 2,072,072 - 7,291,144 (i), (iii) & (iv)
RN Chan Suk Ling, Shirley 3,613,544 16,000 - (i), (iil) & (iv)
BoR ok B Chan Wing Kee 3,692,776 819,404 - (i), (iii), (iv) & (v)
BR X OH Chan Wing To 4,144,736 - - (i), (iii), (iv) & (v)
B & & Fu Sing Yam, William 900,462 - - (ii

2008/09 4R
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in
Shares and Underlying Shares (continued)

)

an

Interests in issued shares (continued)

)

(iv)

The shares are registered under the names of the Directors
and chief executive who are the beneficial owners.

29,601,700 shares of the Company were held by Chan Family
Investment Corporation Limited (which is owned by Messrs
Chan Sui Kau, Chan Wing Fui, Peter, Chan Wing Kee, Chan
Wing Sun, Samuel, Chan Wing To and Fu Sing Yam, William,
Madam Chan Suk Ling, Shirley and other members of the
Chan family) and its subsidiaries.

24,595,908 shares of the Company were held by Canfield
Holdings Limited, which is indirectly owned by Messrs Chan
Wing Fui, Peter, Chan Wing Kee, Chan Wing Sun, Samuel
and Chan Wing To, Madam Chan Suk Ling, Shirley and other
members of the Chan family.

2,917,480 shares of the Company were held by Hearty
Development Limited which is indirectly owned by Messrs
Chan Wing Fui, Peter, Chan Wing Kee, Chan Wing Sun,
Samuel and Chan Wing To, Madam Chan Suk Ling, Shirley
and other members of the Chan family.

1,597,000 shares of the Company were held by Super Team
International Limited which is indirectly owned by Messrs Chan
Wing Kee and Chan Wing To and other members of the Chan
family.

Interests in underlying shares

The Directors and chief executive of the Company have been
granted options under the Company’s share option scheme, details
of which are set out in the section “Share Option Scheme” below.

Apart from the foregoing, none of the Directors and chief executive of
the Company or any of their spouses or children under eighteen years
of age has any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company, or any of its subsidiaries or other
associated corporations, as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Companies.
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Report of the Directors

Share Option Scheme

The Company has a share option scheme which was adopted on 23
September 2004 whereby the Directors of the Company are authorised,
at their discretion, to invite employees of the Group, including directors
of any company in the Group, to take up options to subscribe for shares
in the Company. The purpose of the scheme is to provide an opportunity
for employees of the Group to acquire an equity participation in the
Company and to encourage them to work towards enhancing the value
of the Company and its shares for the benefit of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole. The share option scheme is valid and effective
for a period of 10 years ending on 22 September 2014, after which no
further options will be granted.

The exercise price of options is the highest of the nominal value of the
shares, the closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange on the
date of grant and the average closing price of the shares on the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant.

The options vest 30 days from the date of grant and are then exercisable
within a period of 10 years from the date of grant.

The total number of shares available for issue under the share option
scheme as at 31 March 2009 was 15,469,879 shares (including options
for 11,667,000 shares that have been granted but have not yet lapsed
or been exercised) which represented 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at 31 March 2004. In respect of the maximum
entitlement of each participant under the scheme, the number of shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted to each
participant in any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the Company’s
ordinary shares in issue.

At 31 March 2009, the Directors and employees of the Company had
the following interests in the options to subscribe for shares in the
Company (market value per share at 31 March 2009 was HK$5.13)
granted for a nominal charge on acceptance of the offer of grant of an
option under the Share Option Scheme of the Company. The options
are unlisted. Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one
ordinary share of HK$0.50 each of the Company.
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Share OptiOﬂ Scheme (continued)

k) £ 8 BRER
il K 17 % 19 KuE  ERTED BRETT 5k FEBH
ERENE BRERE BRERE RKRFEH TEHE TEE SBkRHE
No. of Market
options No. of No. of value
outstanding options options Period per share
at the lapsed outstanding during which  Exercise at date of
beginning during at the Date options are  price per  grant of
of the year the year year end granted exercisable share options
HK$ HK$*
EZ Directors
B 3% Ik Chan Sui Kau 1,000,000 - 1,000,000  17/01/2005 16/02/2005 12.10 12.00
to 156/02/2015
Bk Z & Chan Wing Fui, Peter 1,500,000 - 1,500,000  17/01/2005 16/02/2005 12.10 12.00
HE®  andhis Spouse to 15/02/2015
Bk & Chan Wing Sun, Samuel 1,200,000 - 1,200,000  17/01/2005 16/02/2005 12.10 12.00
to 15/02/2015
FPR#ME  Chan Suk Ling, Shirley 1,500,000 - 1,600,000 17/01/2005 16/02/2005 12.10 12.00
to 15/02/2015
B oK Chan Wing Kee 800,000 - 800,000  17/01/2005 16/02/2005 12.10 12.00
to 16/02/2015
Bk Chan Wing To 500,000 - 500,000  17/01/2005 16/02/2005 12.10 12.00
to 156/02/2015
BRE Fu Sing Yam, William 1,200,000 - 1,200,000  17/01/2005 16/02/2005 12.10 12.00
to 16/02/2015
RER Leung Hok Lim 100,000 - 100,000  17/01/2005 16/02/2005 12.10 12.00
to 16/02/2015
5% Wong Lam 25,000 - 25,000 17/01/2005 16/02/2005 12.10 12.00
to 15/02/2015
M Lin Keping 25,000 - 25,000 17/01/2005 16/02/2005 12.10 12.00
to 15/02/2015
7,850,000 - 7,850,000
ES Employees 3,941,000 (124,000) 3,817,000 17/01/2005 16/02/2005 12.10 12.00
to 15/02/2015
@zt Total 11,791,000 (124,000) 11,667,000

2008/09 Annual Report
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Report of the Directors

Share Option Scheme (continued)

The options granted to the Directors are registered under the names of
the Directors who are also the beneficial owners.

*

being the weighted average closing price of the Company’s ordinary
shares immediately before the dates on which the options were
granted.

Information on the accounting policy for share options granted and the
weighted average value per option is provided in note 1(q)(ii) and note
27 to the financial statements respectively.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 March 2009, the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO showed that, other than the interests
disclosed above in respect of the directors, no other interests required
to be recorded in the register kept under section 336 of the SFO have
been notified to the Company.

Save as disclosed herein, the Directors are not aware of any person
who was, directly or indirectly, interested or had a short position in the
shares or underlying shares which fall to be disclosed to the Company
and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO or, was directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or
more of the nominal value of the issued share capital carrying rights to
vote in all circumstances at general meeting of the Company or any
options in respect of such capital as at 31 March 2009.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at the date of
this annual report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under the Listing Rules.

20
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Connected Transactions and Directors’ Interests
in Contracts

Details of the connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules are set out in note 33 to the financial statements. In the opinion of
the Independent Non-executive Directors, these transactions were:

(i)  conducted in the ordinary and usual course of business;

(i) either on normal commercial terms or, where there is no available
comparison, on terms that are fair and reasonable so far as the
independent shareholders of the Company are concerned; and

(i) either in accordance with the terms of the agreements governing
such transactions or, where there are no such agreements, on terms
no less favourable than those available to or from (as appropriate)
independent third parties.

Apart from the foregoing, no contract of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director
of the Company had a material interest, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.

Bank Loans and Other Borrowings

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Company and the
Group as at 31 March 2009 are set out in note 25 to the financial
statements.

Five Year Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 123 of the Annual
Report.

Properties

Particulars of the major properties and property interests of the Group
are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.
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Retirement Schemes

The Company and certain of its subsidiaries in Hong Kong operate a
defined contribution retirement scheme (“the Scheme”) for all qualified
employees. The assets of the Scheme are held separately under a
provident fund managed by an independent trustee. Pursuant to the
rules of the Scheme, the employer is required to make contributions to
the Scheme calculated at 5% of the employees’ basic salaries on a
monthly basis, whereas the employees’ contributions are optional and,
at their own discretion. Where employees leave the Scheme prior to
vesting fully in accordance with the rules of the Scheme, the forfeited
employer’s contributions shall be used to reduce the future contributions
of the employer or shall be refunded to the employer on request.

Following the introduction of the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) on
1 December 2000 employer contributions are now made to the MPF.
The MPF scheme is operated under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees governed by the Employment
Ordinance in Hong Kong. The MPF scheme is a defined contribution
retirement scheme administered by independent trustees. Under the
MPF scheme, the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income,
subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$20,000. Contributions
to the scheme vest immediately.

The employees are entitled to 100% of the employer’s contributions
made prior to the introduction of the MPF and the accrued interest after
10 complete years of service, or at an increasing scale of between 30%
to 90% after completion of 3 to 9 years’ service of the Scheme.

The employees of the subsidiaries in The People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”) and France are members of the state-sponsored retirement
schemes organised by the governments of the PRC and France,
respectively. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of payroll to the retirement scheme to fund the benefits. The
only obligation of the subsidiaries with respect to the retirement schemes
is the required contributions under the retirement schemes.

A subsidiary established in Taiwan participates in a defined benefit
retirement plan established in accordance with the local labour standards
law. Contributions to the plan are based upon 2% of wages and salaries
paid.
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Compliance with the Code of Best Practice

The Company has complied throughout the year with the Code of Best
Practice as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules except that the
non-executive directors of the Company are not appointed for a specific
term but are subject to rotation in annual general meetings pursuant to
Articles 95 and 104 of the Company’s articles of association.

Audit Committee

The audit committee comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors and reports to the Board of Directors. The audit committee
meets with the Group’s senior management and external auditors
regularly to review the effectiveness of the internal control systems and
the Annual Report of the Group.

Auditors

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the Company
is to be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

By order of the Board

Leung Wing Fat

Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 10 July 2009
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Directors

Chan Sui Kau, GBM, GBS, JP

Aged 84, Dr. Chan is the founder of our Group. He established
Yangtzekiang Garment Ltd. in 1949 and is the Executive Chairman of
the Company as well as Yangtzekiang Garment Ltd.. Having been a
Justice of the Peace since 1983, Dr. Chan was awarded the Gold
Bauhinia Star in 2002 and six years later in 2008 he was awarded the
Grand Bauhinia Medal. Dr. Chan used to serve as a member of the 8th
and 9th term of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Committee
until he reached the retirement age. Dr. Chan is also an Honorary Citizen
of Dongguan, Foshan, Guangzhou and Wuxi (Jiangsu).

Dr. Chan received an Honorary Doctoral Degree of Business
Administration from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2001; an
Honorary Doctoral Degree of Social Sciences from City University of
Hong Kong in 2007 and in the same year an Honorary University
Fellowship from The University of Hong Kong. Then in 2008 Dr. Chan
received another two honorary university conferments; one was an
Honorary University Fellowship from Hong Kong Baptist University and
the other one was an Honorary Doctoral Degree of Social Sciences
from The Hong Kong University of Science & Technology.

Dr. Chan is the former Chairman of the Clothing Industry Training Authority
(1986); former Chairman of The Textile Council of Hong Kong (1988 to
1994) and presently its Honorary Chairman; former President of the
Federation of Hong Kong Garment Manufacturers (1977 to 1988) and
currently its Life Honorary President; Honorary President of the Hong
Kong Woollen & Synthetic Knitting Manufacturers’ Association since
1980 and former member of the Textile Advisory Board of Hong Kong
(1971 to 1987) as well as the Hong Kong Labour Advisory (1985 to
1995).

Chan Wing Fui, Peter, MA

Aged 63, Mr. Chan received a Master’s degree in Administrative Science
from Yale University, USA in 1969 and joined Yangtzekiang Garment
Ltd. in the same year. He was appointed as Director in 1971, Managing
Director in 1980 and Vice Chairman of Yangtzekiang Garment Ltd. and
the Company in 1987. Mr. Chan has been actively involved in garment
manufacturing and marketing in the Far East and the USA for over 30
years. He is the son of Dr. Chan Sui Kau and the brother of Mr. Chan
Wing Sun, Samuel and Madam Chan Suk Ling, Shirley.
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Chan Wing Sun, Samuel, FCA

Aged 61, Mr. Chan received a Bachelor’s degree from the University of
Manchester, the United Kingdom in 1970 and qualified as a Chartered
Accountant in 1973. He was the Company Secretary of Yangtzekiang
Garment Ltd. from 1974 to 1988 and has been a Director since 1977.
Mr. Chan was appointed Managing Director of the Company from 1987
to 2006 and has been appointed Chief Executive Officer since 2006. He
has been appointed Chairman of Hang Ten Group Holdings Ltd. since
2003. He is the son of Dr. Chan Sui Kau and the brother of Mr. Chan
Wing Fui, Peter and Madam Chan Suk Ling, Shirley.

Chan Suk Ling, Shirley

Madam Chan has been the Managing Director of the Company since
2006. She joined Yangtzekiang Garment Ltd. in 1973 and was appointed
Director of Yangtzekiang Garment Ltd. in 1983. Madam Chan was Deputy
Managing Director of the Company from 1987. She has extensive
experience of management in the garment retail and wholesale business.
Madam Chan is a Member of the Textiles Advisory Board of Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region, a Member of the Hong Kong-France
Business Partnership Committee of the Hong Kong Trade Development
Council, a Member of the Executive Committee of the Chinese
Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong, Chairman of the Hong Kong
Brand Development Council, Director of the Hong Kong Design Centre,
a Member of the DesignSmart Initiative Assessment Panel, a Member of
the Board of Directors of the Hong Kong Tourism Board, a Member of
the Board of Directors of Ocean Park Corporation, a Committee Member
of the Tianjin Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference and Vice President of the Guangdong
Association of Enterprises with Foreign Investment. She received a
Bachelor’s degree from Trent University, the United Kingdom in 1973.
Madam Chan, aged 58, is the daughter of Dr. Chan Sui Kau and the
sister of Mr. Chan Wing Fui, Peter and Mr. Chan Wing Sun, Samuel.

Fu Sing Yam, William

Aged 47, received a Bachelor’s degree from the University of Western
Ontario, Canada in 1984. Joined the Company in 1985. Appointed
Director in 1995 and Deputy Managing Director of the Company in 2006.
He has extensive experience in fashion retailing, wholesaling, marketing
and merchandising. Mr. Fu is a Committee Member of the Heilongjiang
Provincial Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference.
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Chan Wing Kee, GBS, OBE, JP

Aged 62, Mr. Chan received a Bachelor’s degree in Industrial Engineering
in 1970. He joined Yangtzekiang Garment Ltd. in 1970 as Production
Manager and later became Sales Manager. Mr. Chan was appointed
Director in 1977 and Managing Director of Yangtzekiang Garment Ltd.
in 1987. He is a Director of the Company. He is also an independent
non-executive director of Times Limited, China Travel International
Investment Hong Kong Limited and China Construction Bank (Asia)
Corporation Limited. Mr Chan has participated in many textile
negotiations with the USA and Europe for Hong Kong and Macau. He is
a Standing Committee Member of The 10th and 11th of The Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference; Deputy of the 8th and 9th
National People’s Congress of China, Member of Commission on
Strategic Development of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region;
Ex-member of Economic Council of Macau Special Administrative
Region; Ex-member of the Textile Advisory Board; Ex-Committee Member
of the Preparatory Committee for Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region and Ex-Advisor of Hong Kong Affairs. He is the brother of Mr.
Chan Wing To.

Chan Wing To, PhD

Aged 58, Mr. Chan joined YGM Singapore in 1978. He was appointed
as Director of Yangtzekiang Garment Ltd. in 1983 and the Company in
1987. He is the brother of Mr. Chan Wing Kee.

Leung Hok Lim, FCPA (Aust.), CPA (Macau), FCPA(Practising)

Aged 74, Mr. Leung is an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company, is the founding and senior partner of PKF, Accountants &
Business Advisers. Mr. Leung obtained his fellowship with the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in 1973. He is an
independent non-executive director of Yangtzekiang Garment Ltd and a
non-executive director of Beijing Hong Kong Exchange of Personnel
Centre Limited and a number of listed companies.

Wong Lam, OBE, JP

Aged 90, Mr. Wong was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company in 1995. Mr. Wong is a former member of the
Legislative Council, a former Standing Committee Member of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference of Dongguan. He is an
independent non-executive director of Yangtzekiang Garment Ltd and
Lung Cheong International Holdings Ltd..

Lin Keping

Aged 70, Mr. Lin was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company in 2004. Mr. Lin is an engineer, graduated from
Beijing University of Post and Telecommunications in 1963. He is a
Member of the 8th National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultation Conference and an executive member of the 8th All-China
Federation of Industry and Commerce. He has served in postal and
telecommunication research institutes, the Ministry of Posts and
Telecommunications, and other organisations for many years and was
an executive vice president of China Minsheng Bank Corp Ltd.. He is an
independent non-executive director of Yangtzekiang Garment Ltd.
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Directors and Senior Executives Profiles
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Senior Executives

Kenneth Hung

Aged 42, Mr. Hung joined the Group in 1992. Director of Michel René
Enterprises Ltd. and the Managing Director of Hang Ten Group Holdings
Ltd.. Mr. Hung graduated from the University of Minnesota in the USA
and has extensive experience in the apparel retailing industry.

Cheng Sai Man, Simon

Aged 60, Mr. Cheng received a Bachelor’s degree from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong in 1974 and joined Yangtzekiang Garment Ltd.
in the same year. Mr. Cheng has been General Manager of YGM Clothing
Ltd. since 1988. He has extensive manufacturing and commercial
experience in China.

Andrew Chan

Aged 31, Mr. Chan joined the Group in 2002. A director of YGM Marketing
Ltd.. Mr. Chan attended Skidmore College in New York majoring in
marketing and received a Bachelor’s degree in Economics from the
University of Hartford in Connecticut. He has extensive experience in
the fashion retailing industry in the Greater China region and South East
Asia markets. He is currently responsible for overall management and
strategic development for Charles Jourdan, Guy Laroche and Michel
René. In addition, Mr. Chan assists the Managing Director in the corporate
development of the Group. He is the grandson of Dr. Chan Sui Kau, the
son of Mr. Chan Wing Fui, Peter and the nephew of Mr. Chan Wing Sun,
Samuel and Madam Chan Suk Ling, Shirley.

Cheung Kwok Sum, Sam

Aged 48, Mr. Cheung received a Bachelor’s degree from The University
of Hong Kong in 19883 and joined Yangtzekiang Garment Ltd. in the
same year. Mr. Cheung is the EDP Manager of the Group.

Leung Wing Fat, FCCA, FCPA

Aged 49, Mr. Leung joined the Group as Financial Controller in 1996
and appointed as Company Secretary of the Company in 1998. Mr.
Leung is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He is responsible for accounting and company
secretarial matters.

Ngai Kwai Yung, FCPA(Aust.), CPA, MBA

Aged 51, Mr. Ngai appointed Managing Director of Hong Kong Security
Printing Ltd. in 1998. Holds a Bachelor’s degree of Commerce and a
Master’s degree in Business Administration. Mr. Ngai is a fellow member
of CPA Australia and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.
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8 3L ¥ B D 3 &
Independent Auditor’s Report

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
YGM Trading Limited

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of YGM Trading
Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages 36 to 122 which comprise
the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 March 2009,
the consolidated profit and loss account, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and
fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that
are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.



a

98 3L # By B 3R &
Independent Auditor’s Report

M EE |

TP RMATIE Fr DA ERR 8 1 75 TR P #K
CRAREERNERER MEENEF
BURR Z BED &0 ) i - B AR AR REF X
HRMERP B HRFAERHERRAAE
oo ERIAZERBE BB EEEZQ
ARE R EE M AT 3R mREEE
NEEH - LR EENEZRERF - BXIF
RERRHAIEHOKAERER - BEX
NERFEEEMRANSHARENGEE
KA ER M st AFT A EN - U RFER
BRERNEERI RN -

ZAMAE RAMESHNEZERERTEM
BEMARMANEZT L REHEER -

=t
=2

R

BARR  ZEGEVBRRERE(ELE
MEREEADEEMAFHRER HARF
Lk BEEER-_ZFETNAF=ZA=+—BW=F
BRAKk ESEEEZRLEFENTER
Beng YERREB(RRKRIDZRE
Bl o

EFEHgMEXAAN
BESA
BAEYFIER
AT B 105%

KT KRESHE
—ETNFEATH

Auditor’s responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
March 2009 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building

10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

10 July 2009
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Consolidated Profit and Loss Account

(LA 8 ¥ 31| /R~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BHE=-T T/ F=H=+—H I FJZ For the year ended 31 March 2009

=g 2009 2008
Note $°000 $000
BEEH Turnover 3813 971,936 1,110,115
i=R=N N Cost of sales (379,328) (438,661)
EAM Gross profit 592,608 671,454
E A Other revenue 4 11,496 12,000
H b Uy 25 0F 58 Other net income 4 8,531 10,495
5 86 B AR Distribution costs (367,064) (409,445)
THEHA Administrative expenses (154,487) (174,221)
HEMmgeEER Other operating expenses (2,360) (7,768)
BEHH Profit from operations 88,724 102,515
WEYELE (EE),  Valuation (losses)/gains on investment
W &= properties 14 (13,000) 13,400
HEREYE W= Gain on disposal of investment properties 6 - 45,589
B & K AR Finance costs 5(a) (1,712) (4,729)
JFE {5 Bt & X B 0% AR E5 B Share of profits less losses of associates 17,072 34,099
B& ¥t mi i A Profit before taxation 5 91,084 190,874
P 15 %t Income tax 7 (11,616) (14,630)
X EiiF Profit for the year 79,468 176,244
Br Attributable to:
RAFERBRR Equity shareholders of the Company 10 & 29 80,187 170,997
DERRE S Minority interests 29 (719) 5,247
AEEiGEF Profit for the year 79,468 176,244
AEEEEZEMS Dividends payable to equity
AT H#ER shareholders of the Company
BEES : attributable to the year: 11
FREZT RS HEKE Interim dividend declared during the year 15,383 19,998
REEHEEEZED R Special dividend proposed after the
=Rl R% B balance sheet date = 46,150
REERERZ DK Final dividend proposed after the
NEARR B balance sheet date 43,073 49,226
58,456 115,374
BEEH Earnings per share
XK Basic 12(a) $0.52 $1.11
#E Diluted 12(b) $0.52 $1.11

FABEEFI22A Wit BAYBEHREZ — 8617 »

The notes on pages 43 to 122 form part of these financial statements.
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GEeEEBER
Consolidated Balance Sheet

(LA % ¥ 31| /R~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RZEZFTANF=H=+—H At 31 March 2009

B 5T 2009 2008
Note $’000 $’000 $’000 $000
ERHEE Non-current assets
EEE Fixed assets 14(a)
—EEYE — Investment properties 53,300 66,300
—HtE - HE — Other property, plant
B and equipment 122,542 129,017
— e HERE — Interest in leasehold land
EARAZHEELH held for own use under
= operating lease 5,533 5,571
181,375 200,888
mEEE Intangible assets 15 107,709 108,489
HEEER Lease premium 16 9,727 11,696
B & N B A 2 Interest in associates 18 109,962 128,150
HMmbr & E Other financial assets 19 34,642 35,128
BEEMIEEE Deferred tax assets 28(b) 55,679 65,006
499,094 549,357
MENEE Current assets
EBEERGEZE 5 Trading securities 20 4,537 11,923
FE Inventories 21 140,353 137,709
JFE UL BR FX N E fb E U 3k Trade and other receivables 22 106,874 138,686
RehkREeEED Cash and cash equivalents 23 238,615 276,633
N HR ] iR B # 1E Current tax recoverable 28(a) 2,091 3,406
492,470 568,357
RENERE Current liabilities
JEMEBER N EMER K Trade and other payables 24 155,221 188,640
RITERREX Bank loans and overdrafts 25 14,518 38,942
NEAENS TSR Current tax payable 28(a) 8,930 9,892
178,669 237,474
RBHEEFEE Net current assets 313,801 330,883
BMEERRHER Total assets less
current liabilities 812,895 880,240
kRBER Non-current liabilities
RITER Bank loans 25 3,467 6,406
BELEMIE A E Deferred tax liabilities 28(b) 11,181 13,657
14,648 20,063
BEZFE NET ASSETS

798,247

860,177



- (U#E ¥ 5R Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RZZFZTHNF=H=+—H At 31 March 2009

o2 2009 2008

Note $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
AR E#HE CAPITAL AND RESERVES 29(a)
fi& 2 Share capital 76,916 76,916
15 Reserves 702,386 761,649
XATIRE Total equity attributable to

FE{G#ELS 4R R shareholders
of the Company 779,302 838,565

PEEERS Minority interests 18,945 21,612
MR TOTAL EQUITY 798,247 860,177

EFZeX _TTENFLATBERELFATE
m o

FEWREEZFI2Z2AEZWEBEEXTHRE S —515 -

—_ — — — —

2009.

Chan Sui Kau

Chan Wing Sun, Samuel

—_ — — — —

Directors

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 10 July

The notes on pages 43 to 122 form part of these financial statements.
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BEEBER
Balance Sheet

(LA % ¥ 31| /R~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RZEZFTANF=H=+—H At 31 March 2009

B 5T 2009 2008
Note $’000 $°000 $’000 $000
ERHEE Non-current assets
EEE Fixed assets 14(b) 301 531
MERARE Investments in subsidiaries 17 466,476 562,849
BN a RS Interest in associates 18 17,315 17,315
HEMmEEEE Other financial assets 19 33,681 33,834
517,773 614,529
RENEE Current assets
EBEERAB2BS Trading securities 20 993 5,358
JEURBR Fx M H 4 EUR FX Trade and other receivables 22 1,090 1,537
RekReFEY Cash and cash equivalents 23 132,691 89,705
R H ] iR B B IR Current tax recoverable 28(a) 308 108
135,082 96,708
bk =K Current liabilities
JEMBER R EMENFK  Trade and other payables 24 7,238 7,640
REEEEE Net current assets 127,844 89,068
HEERRHER Total assets less current
liabilities 645,617 703,597
EREBER Non-current liability
EEHIEAE Deferred tax liability 28(b) 14 40
EEZE NET ASSETS 645,603 703,557
B A& R it 6 CAPITAL AND RESERVES 29(b)
[N Share capital 76,916 76,916
Gk Reserves 568,687 626,641
EiSEE TOTAL EQUITY 645,603 703,557
FEEERN _ETNFL A THKMENFAIZE  Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 10 July
oo 2009.
R & BR ) Chan Sui Kau )
) )
) BE ) Directors
BR 7k & ) Chan Wing Sun, Samuel )
) )

FABEZEFI22BE Wit BAUBKHRKZ — 517 ° The notes on pages 43 to 122 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

(LA 8 ¥ 31| /R~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BHE_ZZTNF = H =+ — H 1 F E For the year ended 31 March 2009

B 5 2009 2008
Note $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
ROUA—BHZHESEH Total equity at 1 April 860,177 747,254
EENESERZ Net (expense)/income
(X)W recognised directly
B in equity
WERBUINEE A A Exchange differences on
MBBRERMAEEZ translation of financial
IE A= %8 statements of subsidiaries
based outside Hong Kong | 29(a) (9,360) 11,165
HEBELARCER Exchange reserve realised
2 ONEE on disposal of associate 29(a) - (167)
FEGEEE R A2 Share of exchange reserve
S I 1ok 85 of associates 29(a) (21,143) (334)
EENESERZ Net (expense)/income
AEE X W for the year recognised
B8 directly in equity (30,503) 10,664
XEEFHBH Net profit for the year 29(a) 79,468 176,244
AEEHERBZKE Total recognised income
EHAXBE and expense for the year 48,965 186,908
B Attributable to:
—ARBEERE — Equity shareholders of the
Company 51,496 180,108
- L HBREER — Minority interests (2,531) 6,800
48,965 186,908
RFEE TR EZ Dividends declared or
& S BR approved during the year
attributable to:
—ARAREZEBKRE — Equity shareholders of the
Company 11 (110,759) (69,224)
—LERREE — Minority interests 29(a) (136) (4,761)
(110,895) (73,985)
M=BA=+—BZ#&EEE Total equity at 31 March

FABEEFI22A Wit BAYBEHREZ — 8617 »

798,247

860,177

The notes on pages 43 to 122 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
(LA % ¥ 31| /R~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
E =2 —FFTNF=H=+—H I FJZ For the year ended 31 March 2009
Bt &E 2009 2008
Note $’000 $°000 $000 $'000
HEFD Operating activities
R 0 B g Profit before taxation 91,084 190,874
FHEIEE - Adjustments for:
—REWMEGE — Valuation losses/(gains) on
EiE (W) investment properties 4(a) 13,000 (13,400)
- E — Depreciation 4(a) 31,948 28,284
—BIEBRYE — Amortisation of land lease
T & premium for property
BEREH held for own use 14(a) 158 147
—EmEEESE — Amortisation of intangible
assets 5(c) 780 780
— F B X H — Interest paid 5(a) 1,712 4,729
—RITH B WA - Bank interest income 4 (2,330) (4,575)
—BE QAR ERA — Interest income from
associate 4 (1,911) (1,919
—FEmHEHFZREWA - Dividend income from
listed securities 4 (25) (147)
—EREE QA — Share of profits less losses
i AR 1B of associates (17,072) (34,099)
-PEEMEEEE — Net loss on disposal of
EXZEBFE other fixed assets 4 1,070 2,135
—-HEEBFEEEE 2 - Netgan on disposal of
W 2 5 58 intangible assets 4 - (267)
—-HEREMERE — Gain on disposal of
investment properties 6 - (45,589)
—1EEERB 2B SFESE - Net realised and unrealised
ZJEEBRRRER loss/(gain) on trading
BiE () 8 securities 4 2,904 (4,208)
— B 5 AR - Foreign exchange gain (3,652) (9,302)
EESESEEH Operating profit before
TERA changes in working capital 117,666 113,443
FEgEMm R (Increase)/decrease in
inventories (2,644) 43,156
FEWERR - BRERE Decrease in debtors,
e RIENFOR bills receivable, deposits
and prepayments 31,900 3,157
JE U B 3 | SR8 N Increase in amounts due
from related companies (88) (8,004)
AN 8% Decrease in bills payable (618) (5,350)
FERNEREEEA (Decrease)/increase in creditors
CRA) /& m and accrued charges (27,663) 16,401
FEAT BEiE A R BOR D Decrease in amounts due to
related companies (5,138) (1,826)
CEEBEEZHSZ Cash generated from
operations 113,415 165,977
[RENE Tax paid
EREENGEN Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (8,108) (13,822)
BENEBNIINE 2 Tax paid outside
i 18 Hong Kong (3,508) (6,742)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

(LA 8 ¥ 31| /R~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

TN 4 = H = + — A I % ¥ For the year ended 31 March 2009

Bt = 2009 2008
Note $°000 $°000 $'000 $'000
CETHELEZRSR Net cash generated from
BE operating activities 101,799 145,413
BETH Investing activities
BABREEEMNK Payment for the purchase of
fixed assets (26,621) (20,208)
HEBTEEMNMBSIKE  Proceeds from disposal of
fixed assets 31 2,508
HEREMERS Net proceeds from disposal
RIBF R of investment properties - 74,589
HEEEEMSHIE  Proceeds from disposal of
intangible assets - 342
BAEESE Bk 2ES%S  Payment for the purchase of
E trading securities (30,371) (33,156)
HEEEEHB Z2EFS  Proceeds from disposal of
T 15 318 trading securities 34,230 29,418
SR RN 7 [i% 2 Dividends received from
an associate 14,117 10,111
B W RTTH B Bank interest received 2,330 4,575
B A R 2 Other interest received 1,911 1,919
BERETEHFRKE Dividends received from
listed securities 25 147
BEES (FfA) EHE  Netcash (used in)/generated
ZHR&FHE from investing activities (4,348) 70,245
BLEEH Financing activities
FTILIRITE SRS Proceeds from new bank
I8 loans - 16,650
BERRITEXK Repayment of bank loans (15,856) (93,537)
FE X Interest paid (1,712) (4,729)
ERNARAREmRE Dividends paid to equity
2B B shareholders of the
Company 11 (110,759) (69,224)
B EREER Dividends paid to minority
Z BB interests 29(a) (136) (4,761)
AEEHFTAIR&FEE  Net cash used in financing
activities (128,463) (155,601)
RERIFEZEEWMCRL),~ Net (decrease)/increase in
¥ hn % 38 cash and cash equivalents (31,012) 60,057
ROA—BZHER Cash and cash equivalents
Re%EEY at 1 April 256,544 190,391
MEEREHZHE Effect of foreign exchange
rate changes 466 6,096
W=HA=+—HZ2 Cash and cash equivalents
HeRELEEY at 31 March 23

FABEEFI122B Wit BARYBHELZ — 80

225,998

256,544

The notes on pages 43 to 122 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(B 2B BT 155 - 15 LB 51| 7~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1 EEFFTHER 1 Significant accounting policies
(@ ZBHEH

(@) Statement of compliance

AMBBRRRERABERAZEE
MBmEEN([FEMBEREE
A1) e EESFMAE ([FE
GEHEMAG) MM ZAEEMR 2@
A EBMBREER - BEGE
Al ([EEGER]) MRE - FE
AREFRAMEFECR RS Z
MEZHTH) WE - AMBEMET
NeaBERARZMARRAR ([H
ZHDBESETRAUZERKER
EeUATRAKERBZEIESS
HRBE -

ERETMAGERME THAIR
RIEFT2BEMBRELEL - AR
AEBRARA ZAREFTHEE
REBH A HIRP D o MRER
ZERAEEER2BEEYBRE
ERIPTEI B E AT MIAE &5 R Z
CRTBRED  ERBRRAMEHR
KA BEERIIENMESE2R -

MBHRERmREE

BHE-_ZTAF=A=1+—HIL#F
BZHReMBREBREARARE
MEBAR (I AEE]) RAEE

S TP LEL

BT XA B2 BB - AR
WREUESE KA ARYUFA
HERE -

RETABREMBRELEL Z 87
Hx EREEERAIRXEBREKE
RAREE B - WamklXZ
EmESBELHLE  EHERER -
ERBEREERRREEELER
REERIEBEATHEBAEZH
EEEL - BEREAERBRE REE
EEMENKRBRRCEERARE
ZRREEEL A 2 £ - BERE
RAUGEZEHEAMEZR -

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). A summary of
the significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is
set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 2
provides information on the changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2009 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”) and the Group’s interest
in associates.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except as set out in the
accounting policies below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements (continued)

(©

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial statements
and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment in
the next year are discussed in note 34.

Subsidiaries and minority interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists
when the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its
activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that
presently are exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances and transactions and any unrealised profits arising
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the
same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there
is no evidence of impairment.

Minority interests represent the portion of the net assets of
subsidiaries attributable to interests that are not owned by
the Company, whether directly or indirectly through
subsidiaries, and in respect of which the Group has not agreed
any additional terms with the holders of those interests which
would result in the Group as a whole having a contractual
obligation in respect of those interests that meets the definition
of a financial liability. Minority interests are presented in the
consolidated balance sheet within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company.
Minority interests in the results of the Group are presented on
the face of the consolidated profit and loss account as an
allocation of the total profit or loss for the year between minority
interests and the equity shareholders of the Company.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(©

(d)

Subsidiaries and minority interests (continued)

Where losses applicable to the minority exceed the minority’s
interest in the equity of a subsidiary, the excess, and any further
losses applicable to the minority, are charged against the
Group’s interest except to the extent that the minority has a
binding obligation to, and is able to, make additional investment
to cover the losses. |If the subsidiary subsequently reports
profits, the Group’s interest is allocated all such profits until
the minority’s share of losses previously absorbed by the Group
has been recovered.

In the Company'’s balance sheet, an investment in a subsidiary
is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 1(k)(ii)).

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company has
significant influence, but not control or joint control, over its
management, including participation in the financial and
operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity method
and is initially recorded at cost and adjusted thereafter for the
post acquisition change in the Group’s share of the associate’s
net assets. The consolidated profit and loss account includes
the Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of
the associates for the year, including any impairment of
goodwill relating to the interests in associates recognised for
the year (see notes 1(e) and 1(k)(ii)).

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the
associate, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and recognition
of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate. For this purpose, the
Group’s interest in the associate is the carrying amount of the
investment under the equity method together with the Group’s
long-term interests that in substance form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d) Associates (continued)

(e)

®

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the associate, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in the consolidated profit and loss account.

In the Company'’s balance sheet, its investments in associates
are stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 1(K)(ii)).

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business
combination or an investment in an associate over the Group’s
interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units and is tested
annually for impairment (see note 1(k)(ii)). In respect of
associates, the carrying amount of goodwill is included in the
carrying amount of the interest in the associate.

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over the cost of a business combination or an investment in
an associate is recognised immediately in the consolidated
profit and loss account.

On disposal of a cash generating unit or an associate during
the year, any attributable amount of purchased goodwill is
included in the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Other investments in debt and equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments in
debt and equity securities, other than investments in
subsidiaries and associates, are as follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially stated at
cost, which is their transaction price unless fair value can be
more reliably estimated using valuation techniques whose
variables include only data from observable markets. Cost
includes attributable transaction costs, except where indicated
otherwise below. These investments are subsequently
accounted for as follows, depending on their classification:
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1 EEEHBR @ 1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

( REBRRAESZEMKE (H) (f)  Other investments in debt and equity securities (continued)
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Investments in securities held for trading are classified as
current assets. Any attributable transaction costs are
recognised in the profit and loss account as incurred. At each
balance sheet date the fair value is remeasured, with any
resultant gain or loss being recognised in consolidated profit
and loss account. The net gain or loss recognised in the
consolidated profit and loss account does not include any
dividends or interest earned on these investments as these
are recognised in accordance with the policies set out in notes
1(t)(iv) and (v).

Dated debt securities that the Group and/or the Company
have the positive ability and intention to hold to maturity are
classified as held-to-maturity securities. Held-to-maturity
securities are stated in the balance sheet at amortised cost
less impairment losses (see note 1(k)).

Investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured are recognised in the balance sheet at
cost less impairment losses (see note 1(k)).

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the
Group and/or the Company commits to purchase/sell the
investments or they expire.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 1(j)) to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are stated in the balance sheet at fair
value. Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value or
from the retirement or disposal of an investment property is
recognised in the profit and loss account. Rental income from
investment properties is accounted for as described in note

1 (4)(i)-
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(g

(h)

Investment properties (continued)

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
the interest is classified and accounted for as an investment
property on a property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an investment property
is accounted for as if it were held under a finance lease (see
note 1(j)), and the same accounting policies are applied to
that interest as are applied to other investment properties
leased under finance leases. Lease payments are accounted
for as described in note 1().

Other property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment are stated
in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses (see note 1(k)):

— land held under operating leases and buildings thereon,
where the fair values of the leasehold interest in the land
and buildings cannot be measured separately at the
inception of the lease and the building is not clearly held
under an operating lease (see note 1()));

—  buildings held for own use which are situated on leasehold
land, where the fair value of the building could be
measured separately from the fair value of the leasehold
land at the inception of the lease (see note 1(j)); and

—  other items of plant and equipment.

Where land and buildings are transferred from investment
properties, “cost” represents the fair value at the date of
change in use of the properties.

In preparing these financial statements, the Group has relied
upon the provisions set out in paragraph 80A of HKAS 16,
“Property, plant and equipment” issued by the HKICPA, with
the effect that fair value of investment property transferred to
land and buildings in prior years has been treated as the
deemed cost of those land and buildings at the date of transfer.
Such previously revalued land and buildings have not been
revalued to fair value at the balance sheet date and are stated
at deemed cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses and will not be revalued in future years.
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1 EEEHBR @ 1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(h Bt BERRE (&) (h) Other property, plant and equipment (continued)
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Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

Leasehold land is depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the remaining term of the lease.

—  Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated over
the shorter of the unexpired term of the lease and their
estimated useful lives, being no more than 50 years after
the date of completion.

—  Plant and machinery over 10 years.

—  Leasehold improvements, motor vehicles, furniture and
equipment between 2 to 10 years.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost or valuation of the item is
allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts and each
part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset
and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in the profit and loss
account on the date of retirement or disposal.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

()  Trademarks

Trademarks acquired by the Group with an indefinite
estimated useful economic life are stated in the balance
sheet at cost less accumulated impairment losses (see
note 1(k)). Expenditure on internally generated brands is
recognised as an expense in the period in which it is
incurred.

(i) Licences

Licences acquired by the Group with a finite estimated
useful economic life are stated in the balance sheet at
cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses (see note 1(k)).

Amortisation of licences is charged to the profit and loss
account on a straight-line basis over the period to which
the licence relates.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(i)

G

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)

(i) Lease premiums

Lease premiums paid by the Group with an indefinite
estimated useful economic life are stated in the balance
sheet at cost less accumulated impairment losses (see
note 1(k)).

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful lives are
assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion that the useful life
of an intangible asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to
determine whether events and circumstances continue to
support the indefinite useful life assessment for that asset. If
they do not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is accounted for prospectively from the date
of change and in accordance with the policy for amortisation
of intangible assets with finite lives as set out above.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of
a lease.

()  Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by Group under leases which transfer
to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as being held under finance
leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases, with the following
exceptions:

—  property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as an investment property on
a property-by-property basis and, if classified as
investment property, is accounted for as if held under
a finance lease (see note 1(g)); and
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

1)

Leased assets (continued)

M

(i

Classification of assets leased to the Group (continued)

— land held for own use under an operating lease, the
fair value of which cannot be measured separately
from the fair value of a building situated thereon at
the inception of the lease, is accounted for as being
held under a finance lease, unless the building is
also clearly held under an operating lease. For these
purposes, the inception of the lease is the time that
the lease was first entered into by the Group, or
taken over from the previous lessee.

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under finance
leases, the amounts representing the fair value of the
leased asset, or, if lower, the present value of the minimum
lease payments, of such assets are included in fixed
assets. Depreciation is provided at rates which write off
the cost or valuation of the assets over the term of the
relevant lease or, where it is likely the Group will obtain
ownership of the asset, the life of the asset. Impairment
losses are accounted for in accordance with the
accounting policy as set out in note 1(K).

(i) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to the profit and loss account in equal
instalments over the accounting periods covered by the
lease term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the leased asset. Lease incentives received are
recognised in the profit and loss account as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rentals are charged to the profit and loss
account in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

The cost of acquiring land under an operating lease is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease term except where the property is classified as an
investment property (see note 1(g)).
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Impairment of assets

(i

Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities
and other receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities (other than
investments in subsidiaries and associates: see note
1(K)(ii)) and other current and non-current receivables that
are stated at cost or amortised cost are reviewed at each
balance sheet date to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of
impairment includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about one or more of the following
loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor; and

— asignificant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
an investment in an equity instrument below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, an impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

- For unquoted equity securities and current
receivables that are carried at cost, the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the
carrying amount of the financial asset and the
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset where the effect of discounting is material.
Impairment losses for equity securities are not
reversed.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of assets (continued)

Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities
and other receivables (continued)

For trade and other current receivables and other
financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition of these assets), where the effect
of discounting is material. This assessment is made
collectively where financial assets carried at
amortised cost share similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future cash flows
for financial assets which are assessed for
impairment collectively are based on historical loss
experience for assets with credit risk characteristics
similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be linked objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the impairment
loss is reversed through the profit and loss account.
A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which
would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i

(i

Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities
and other receivables (continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade debtors and bills
receivable included within trade and other receivables,
whose recovery is considered doubtful but not remote.
In this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts
are recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against trade
debtors and bills receivable directly and any amounts
held in the allowance account relating to that debt are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in the profit
and loss account.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at each balance sheet date to identify indications that
the following assets may be impaired or, except in the
case of goodwill, an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment (other than properties
carried at revalued amounts);

—  pre-paid interests in leasehold land classified as
being held under an operating lease;

— intangible assets;

— investments in subsidiaries and associates; and

- goodwill.
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1 EEEHBR @ 1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
k) EZEEHE (HE) (k) Impairment of assets (continued)
iy HEERE(E) (i)  Impairment of other assets (continued)

MREBBERESTR - Al If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable

FFezBEEZ Y E SR o It amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill and

G SRR R FEAERE 2 intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives, the

HEREREEEMS H 85T recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or not

HAWEEELES B EMEEAE there is any indication of impairment.

173

— FrEATKEHE —  Calculation of recoverable amount
B E A e SRR A The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
EFENEREEMER of its net selling price and value in use. In assessing
ZEEBBEAE - TG value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
FAREER SEAKRM discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
ATEER AT RRRE discount rate that reflects current market
MENBZEHAE - ZE assessments of the time value of money and the
ERMMSERMTHZ risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does
ERRREAEENZEEZ not generate cash inflows largely independent of
BWAHRER - tnREE KRB those from other assets, the recoverable amount is
UARBBIREMEEZ determined for the smallest group of assets that
FRAEEBRESRA - A generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
BEFMB oA BLEER generating unit).

EMAZ&/NARIEE (B
ReELBEM) RETEIKR

o] £1 %8 -

- WRBEEBE - Recognition of impairment losses
WEESXHEFBRSES An impairment loss is recognised in the profit and
BUREEBRE TR loss account whenever the carrying amount of an
O - AUREEERE asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it
ARER - RReELS belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
NERZBEBES LE Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-
D 2RO 7 B (3 generating units are allocated to reduce the carrying
—HEN) BEEZREE - amount of the assets in the unit (or group of units)
HEEZEREET G R D on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value
ZEAEER A FEER of an asset will not be reduced below its individual
& B AN Sk (3 A (B 1B (182 fair value less costs to sell, or value in use, if
BE) ° determinable.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k)

()

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i

(i)

Impairment of other assets (continued)
—  Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to the profit and loss account in
the year in which the reversals are recognised.

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange, the Group is required to prepare
an interim financial report in compliance with HKAS 34,
“Interim financial reporting”, in respect of the first six
months of the financial year. At the end of the interim
period, the Group applies the same impairment testing,
recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the end of
the financial year (see notes 1(k)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill, available-for-sale equity securities
and unquoted equity securities carried at cost are not
reversed in a subsequent period. This is the case even if
no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been recognised
had the impairment been assessed only at the end of
the financial year to which the interim period relates.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Cost is calculated using the FIFO formula and comprises all
costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition.
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1 EEEHBR @ 1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

n =E (&) ()  Inventories (continued)
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Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value
and thereafter stated at amortised cost less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts (see note 1(k)(i)), except where
the receivables are interest-free loans made to related parties
without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting
would be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated
at cost less impairment of doubtful debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value
less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost with any difference between the amount initially
recognised and redemption value being recognised in the profit
and loss account over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the effective interest
method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value.
Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in
accordance with note 1(s)(i), trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated
at cost.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(p) Cash and cash equivalents

(q)

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts
that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management are also included as a component
of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the
consolidated cash flow statement.

Employee benefits

(i)

(i

Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees.
Where payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at their
present values.

Share based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at grant date using the binomial lattice model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. Where the employees have
to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the total estimated
fair value of the options is spread over the vesting period,
taking into account the probability that the options will
vest.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(@) Employee benefits (continued)

(r

(i) Share based payments (continued)

During the vesting period, the number of options that is
expected to vest is reviewed. Any adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to the profit and loss account for the year of the
review, unless the original employee expenses qualify for
recognition as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment
to the capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual
number of options that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve) except where forfeiture
is only due to not achieving vesting conditions that relate
to the market price of the Company’s shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the capital reserve until either
the option is exercised (when it is transferred to the share
premium account) or the option expires (when it is
released directly to retained profits).

(iiiy  Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to
terminate employment or to provide benefits as a result
of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed formal plan
which is without realistic possibility of withdrawal.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised
in the profit and loss account, except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised directly in equity, in which case they
are recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable
in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(r)

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities
and all deferred tax assets, to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which the
asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits
that may support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences include those that will
arise from the reversal of existing taxable temporary
differences, provided those differences relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in periods
into which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can
be carried forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary differences
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
unused tax losses, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period,
or periods, in which the tax loss can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are those temporary differences arising from
goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition
of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business combination),
and temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the reversal and
it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible differences,
unless it is probable that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(r

(s)

Income tax (continued)

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each other
and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against current
tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred tax
liabilities if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— inthe case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

—  different taxable entities, which, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered, intend
to realise the current tax assets and settle the current
tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities

(i)  Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer
(i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments to
reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”)
for a loss the holder incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(s) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities (continued)

(0

(i

Financial guarantees issued (continued)

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair
value of the guarantee (being the transaction price, unless
the fair value can otherwise be reliably estimated) is initially
recognised as deferred income within trade and other
payables. Where consideration is received or receivable
for the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is
recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in the profit and loss account on
initial recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in the profit and loss
account over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are
recognised in accordance with note 1(s)(iii) if and when
(i) it becomes probable that the holder of the guarantee
will call upon the Group under the guarantee, and (i) the
amount of that claim on the Group is expected to exceed
the amount currently carried in trade and other payables
in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount initially
recognised, less accumulated amortisation.

Contingent liabilities acquired in business combinations

Contingent liabilities acquired as part of a business
combination are initially recognised at fair value, provided
the fair value can be reliably measured. After their initial
recognition at fair value, such contingent liabilities are
recognised at the higher of the amount initially recognised,
less accumulated amortisation where appropriate, and
the amount that would be determined in accordance with
note 1(s)(iii). Contingent liabilities acquired in a business
combination that cannot be reliably fair valued are
disclosed in accordance with note 1(s)(iii).
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(s) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

®

liabilities (continued)

(i~ Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group or the Company has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money
is material, provisions are stated at the present value of
the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in the profit and loss
account as follows:

(i)  Sale of goods

Revenue arising from the sale of garments and printing
products is recognised when goods are delivered to the
customer which is taken to be the point in time when the
customer has accepted the goods and the related risks
and rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes value
added tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction of
any trade discounts.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(Y Revenue recognition (continued)

(i

(i)

(iv)

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in the profit and loss account in equal
instalments over the periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the use of the leased asset. Lease incentives
granted are recognised in the profit and loss account as
an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income
in the accounting period in which they are earned.

Royalty income

Royalty income is recognised in accordance with the
substance of the relevant agreements.

Dividend income

—  Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established.

— Dividend income from listed investments is
recognised when the share price of the investment
goes ex-dividend.

Interest income

— Interest income from dated debt securities intended
to be held to maturity is recognised as it accrues,
as adjusted by the amortisation of the premium or
discount on acquisition, so as to achieve a constant
rate of return over the period from the date of
purchase to the date of maturity.

— Interest income from bank deposits is recognised
as it accrues using the effective interest method.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(u) Translation of foreign currencies

(i)

(i

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s subsidiaries are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (“the functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date.
Exchange gains and losses are recognised in the profit
and loss account.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates the fair value was determined.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Balance sheet items are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the balance sheet date. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised directly in a separate
component of equity. Goodwill arising on consolidation
of a foreign operation acquired before 1 January 2005 is
translated at the foreign exchange rate that applied at
the date of acquisition of the foreign operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount
of the exchange differences recognised in equity which
relate to that foreign operation is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

)

w)

x)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in the profit or loss account in
the period in which they are incurred.

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is
considered to be related to the Group if:

()  the party has the ability, directly or indirectly, through one
or more intermediaries to control the Group or exercise
significant influence over the Group in making financial
and operating policy decisions, or has joint control over
the Group;

(i) the Group and the party are subject to common control;

(i the party is an associate of the Group or a joint venture
in which the Group is a venturer;

(iv) the party is @ member of key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent, or a close family member
of such an individual, or is an entity under the control,
joint control or significant influence of such individuals;

(v) the party is a close family member of a party referred to
n (i) or is an entity under the control, joint control or
significant influence of such individuals; or

(vi) the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is for
the benefit of employees of the Group or of any entity
that is a related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that individual in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that
is engaged either in providing products or services (business
segment), or in providing products or services within a
particular economic environment (geographical segment),
which is subject to risks and rewards that are different from
those of other segments.
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1 EEEHBR @ 1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
x) ZDEBEHE (&) (x) Segment reporting (continued)
RRBRAEE AT BERE RS - In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting
REBCDHAMBRREFUED system, the Group has chosen business segment information
APHABREZETERN - MibES as the primary reporting format and geographical segment
HARMEZRERN - information as the secondary reporting format for the purposes
of these financial statements.
DERUA - EE - BEERA Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities
BEREEERBE —9# - ARA include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those
BERBAESRNEZ 21 E that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to that segment.
Blan - HEREEREEBREFE For example, segment assets may include inventories, trade
WEREME  BEREZE -9 ﬁli receivables and property, plant and equipment. Segment
WA - EERABEREERN revenue, expenses, assets, and liabilities are determined before
HARBELRERANTRSENBE intra-group balances and intra-group transactions are
WMERFEERZEBEAEE  BXE eliminated as part of the consolidation process, except to the
EEEEHRAB—EoBsEBEA extent that such intra-group balances and transactions are
B ERBRBERZZARIN - nE 2 between Group entities within a single segment. Inter-segment
MEEBZEEMINAANLTHEE Z1E pricing is based on similar terms as those available to other
KETE external parties.
DEEARF T RIEEHANE ATES Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during
ARHBE—(AHEERzHE J'Z the period to acquire segment assets (both tangible and
(BEERREREE) EEZK intangible) that are expected to be used for more than one
KEBEE - period.
FEPRED %E HEFXFEZERREVH Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and corporate
Ri¥EE TEER -EFEH M assets, interest-bearing loans, borrowings, tax balances,
HESH PERBEIS - corporate and financing expenses.
2 ERIBREH 2 Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued the following new Interpretation and
amendment to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company.

e HK(IFRIC) 11, HKFRS 2 — Group and treasury share
transactions

° Amendment to HKAS 39, Financial instruments: Recognition
and measurement, and HKFRS 7, Financial instruments:
Disclosures — Reclassification of financial assets

These HKFRS developments have had no material impact on the
Group’s financial statements as either they were consistent with
accounting policies already adopted by the Group or they were not
relevant to the Group’s and the Company’s operations.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that
is not yet effective for the current accounting period (see note 35).
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B 3  Turnover

ARBZEBEB RIREEBRREHRE
BRY - EMNBARIRBERRZEE
EBHENMBHRRFIOAEEF 1228 o

BRBEETIREPZARERFE
EMNEERWESNAEP 2EHE WA R
AREBERBEEAN FACHELER
PR EREEWABRIZBEWT

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and
the provision of management services. The principal activities of
the subsidiaries and associates are set out on pages 119 to 122 to
the financial statements.

Turnover represents the aggregate of net invoiced value of sales to
and royalty and rental income from external customers and income
from printing and related services. The amount of each significant
category of revenue recognised in turnover during the year is as

follows:
2009 2008
$°000 $'000
X 1K 85 & Sales of garments 873,405 998,303
EREB BB Royalty and related income 59,533 65,145
EN Rl % 75 78 AR 7% Printing and related services 34,675 38,981
HEMERS WAL Gross rentals from investment properties 4,323 7,686
971,936 1,110,115
Hib g N R U 5% 8 4 Other revenue and net income
2009 2008
$°000 $'000
B A Other revenue
1B E R Alteration charges 256 186
RITHF B U A Bank interest income 2,330 4,575
/NS PIFSRT N Interest income from associate 1,911 1,919
JE B (B 3R Claims receivable 1,171 586
EFWEHZBRBERA Dividend income from listed securities 25 147
HAb Others 5,803 4,587
11,496 12,000
Hhr s FEE Other net income
& 5 Iz /558 Net exchange gain 11,863 6,772
TEEMWETEEEESE Net loss on disposal of other
ZIEBEFE fixed assets (1,070) (2,135)
EEER®BZESFEEZ  Netrealised and unrealised (loss)/
BEER R AREIR gain on trading securities
(&#8) /W% 8 (2,904) 4,208
HEEFEEEELE ZWE  Net gain on disposal of
F 5 (M55 1518) intangible assets (note 15) - 267
HAb Others 642 1,383
8,531 10,495
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5 BR% A0 F
BREBEREANR S (5A)

5 Profit before taxation

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

2009 2008
$°000 $000
@ BEKK (@)  Finance costs
BARAFABHER Interest on bank advances and
ZRITERR other borrowings wholly
H & 5F 8 repayable within five years 1,712 4,729
(b) B IEA* (o) Staff costs*
FRE MR KRGS Contributions to defined contribution
2R retirement plans 12,608 17,693
e IERHMER Salaries, wages and other benefits 195,763 205,118
208,371 222,811
) HAIEE ()  Other items
BV EEHE (T E1518) Amortisation of intangible assets (note 15) 780 780
BEEEENMENREH Depreciation and amortisation on
(M sEE#E14()mE) owned assets (note 14(a))* 32,106 28,431
USRS R EMERR 2 Impairment losses on trade and other
BB E 18 (3 5 22(0)8) receivables (note 22(b)) 2,833 6,317
ZEE B Auditors’ remuneration
— ZE R — audit services
- EEHSHMEKM - KPMG 2,437 2,385
— E b 8AD — other auditors 1,096 1,325
— B R — tax services 326 534
KEHEEB R Operating lease charges*
—-REHES — hire of equipment 1,602 3,059
-MEHES — property rentals
(8#528,919,0007T (including contingent
(ZEENF rental payments
30,557,0007T) of $28,919,000
FARESFER)) (2008: $30,557,000)) 178,887 199,031
JE(RBE & AR FIA Share of associates’ taxation 4,765 9,262
BEMEERE SR Rentals receivable from investment properties
BEXH less direct outgoings (1,683) (4,252)
FERA (M % 21(0)18) Cost of inventories* (note 21 (b)) 379,328 438,661

* FERABIFEETIRA - FEERR *
A EE A B 230,690,000 (ZF
= J\4F : 31,876,0007T) > BEAEEIE
RALXRIMEFESOLEI BN RZE
HBRAER -

Cost of inventories includes $30,690,000 (2008: $31,876,000) relating
to staff costs, depreciation expenses and operating lease charges, which
amount is also included in the respective total amounts disclosed
separately above or in note 5(b) for each of these types of expenses.
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6 LWEREMEKS

RZZEENF_A=-+H  XAFZMW
i Fff B A &) Chenza Ridge Limited &2 & %
BEERARSEEH -—EBIYE=FF Y
teErBEEaE WHEEGREEF
BEHz2IBEEE - #MRE75311,000
T o REWMBEEN-_EENF=ZA_+
J\H TR » % F45,589,0005T (B 1k 72
B #722,0000T) ERBEZZTZEN\F =
A=+ BLEFEZHREABERAER -

GEEBRMIZHEHR

@ GEEZXRFIIZHEAR

7

Gain on disposal of investment properties

On 20 February 2008, two subsidiaries of the Company, Chenza
Ridge Limited and Parahood Limited entered into sale and purchase
agreements with an independent third party respectively to dispose
of their factory and warehouses at Lee Chung Street, Hong Kong
for a total consideration of $75,311,000. These agreements were
completed on 28 March 2008 and a profit of $45,589,000, net of
legal fees of $722,000, was recognised in the consolidated profit
and loss account for the year ended 31 March 2008.

Income tax in the consolidated profit and loss
account

(@) Taxation in the consolidated profit and loss account

represents:
2009 2008
$°000 $'000
AHBE -FEHNEH Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax
REFEE Provision for the year 8,575 11,231
UEEE CBR) /TR %EH (Over/under-provision in respect of prior years (384) 74
8,191 11,305
AHBIE -FHELIME  Current tax - Outside Hong Kong
NEFERE Provision for the year 4,472 4,736
WEFE CBFR) SR EMH (Over/under-provision in respect of prior years (715) 416
3,757 5,152
IEERIE Deferred tax
EEMBEEREER Origination and reversal of temporary differences (332) (1,601)
FEMEERIPA—H Effect on deferred tax balances at 1 April
BERIBER 2T E resulting from a decrease in tax rate - (226)
(332) (1,827)
11,616 14,630

—ETNFZEENERERBRAE
FEGTERFEN2165% (=%
TN\EF 17.5%) 5 H o

R-ZZEENFE-_R FBEBITH
@ BT ARSI ER17.5%FEE
16.5% ' LIEARAEE 2 HHELE"
YTH-_ZEZAF=ZA=+—HBHEE
HIEEW ST N\NFELAEEY
BREPEEHBEAGT R FAE-

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2009 is calculated
at 16.5% (2008: 17.5%) of the estimated assessable profits
for the year.

In February 2008, the Hong Kong Government announced a
decrease in the Profits Tax rate from 17.5% to 16.5%
applicable to the Group’s operations in Hong Kong as from
the year ended 31 March 2009. This decrease is taken into
account in the preparation of the Group’s 2008 financial
statements in respect of deferred tax balances.
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7

HEEBRANZAES @
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HERm&IzHER X (H)

BB AN R I B A B 2 B IR A LA
HEBRFKERZRIMERE -

R-_ZEZLF=ZA+H  £F+E
2ERAARRERGERRAGREBB
i ARLME ([FE]) BERS
FoE([#FBE]) RZTEZENF—
A—BRBER - BREFHFE - &F
B B B8~ )i B A A TE TS B R
F 15%-33%2k & 25% °

EFHBEAT  FRIBEREERES
& E B BT & B 10%EM -
AT ARBI0%TEI R KRS
ERXBE-_ZETN\F-—A—HEM
R 0 M B9 BB o i R B B SN
REEMEREZER ZRAFTERD
BEHZE - AR RBEFEIHR X
B RBEFHETEEZHANEER
Mz NEBEARAKRESETH
50 Bf /88 ®) P S A O ) B B 12 5%
MBHR RGN BRR -

B 18 B 3% M 7 & &t )i 7l 1248 F 9 R
FTEZHK

7

Income tax in the consolidated profit and loss
account (continued)

(@

(b)

Taxation in the consolidated profit and loss account
represents: (continued)

Taxation for subsidiaries based outside Hong Kong is charged
at the appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant
jurisdictions.

On 16 March 2007, the Fifth Plenary Session of the Tenth
National People’s Congress passed the Corporate Income Tax
Law of The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) (the “new
tax law”) which became effective on 1 January 2008. Under
the new tax law, the statutory income tax rate applicable to
the PRC subsidiaries has changed from between 15%-33%
to 25%.

Under the new tax law, a 10% withholding tax will also be
levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the
Group’s PRC subsidiaries, however, only the dividends
attributable to the profits of the financial period starting from 1
January 2008 will be subject to the withholding tax. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
arrangement between the PRC and the jurisdiction of the
foreign investor. Pursuant to a double tax arrangement
between the PRC and Hong Kong, the Group is subject to a
withholding tax at a rate of 5% for any dividend payments
from certain of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries.

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit

at applicable tax rates:

2009 2008
$’°000 $’000
B B¢ A 4 A Profit before taxation 91,084 190,874
LR EEBERERSEF Notional tax on profit before taxation,
ZERMETE calculated at the rates applicable
REBIRIRAM 2 BEBIB to profits in the countries concerned 7,097 17,759
TR MEAS 2 HIEFEE  Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 7,008 8,256
ERBMBAZTIBTE Tax effect of non-taxable revenue (807) (11,649)
FRFEANFEERER  Taxeffect of tax losses not recognised
ZMBBBREZTE in prior years utilised during the year (162) -
FRERANFFEERER  Taxeffect of tax losses not recognised
CHMEEBRTE in prior years recognised in the current year (421) -
FRRRTALYHVIEL  Effect on opening deferred tax balances
FIiSfMEn e & resulting from a decrease in tax rate - (226)
NEFEZ BFE) TR (Over)/under-provision in respect of
P prior years (1,099) 490
EREBIERX Actual tax expense 11,616 14,630
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8 EEME 8 Directors’ remuneration
BIEEBCARMEN ) E161ETIR 2 & Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the
EMewmT - Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:
e 2R BRETE
ExHe ENFli BETRL @t
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits Discretionary scheme

Directors’ fees in kind bonuses contributions Total

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000  $000
iE Chairman
PR 3 BX Chan Sui Kau 30 30 1,463 1,463 1,200 1,200 - - 2693 2,693
HITEZE Executive Directors
Bk ZE Chan Wing Fui, Peter 30 30 - - 1,025 1,025 - - 1,055 1,055
Bk % Chan Wing Sun, Samuel 30 30 2,730 2,730 2,050 2,050 72 72 4,882 4882
FEBME  Chan Suk Ling, Shirley 30 30 2,236 2,236 2,850 2,800 72 72 5188 5,138
B Fu Sing Yam, William 30 30 1,625 1,625 2800 2,250 60 60 4,015 3,965
Bk ChanWing Kee 30 30 - - - - - - 30 30
B XCE Chan Wing To 30 30 - - - - - - 30 30
Bi Independent

F#HIT  Non-executive
EE Directors
RER Leung Hok Lim 160 160 - - - - - - 160 160
& Wong Lam 60 60 - - - - - - 60 60
My F Lin Keping 60 60 - - - - - - 60 60
490 490 8,064 8,054 9425 9,325 204 204 18,173 18,073

BEAQGEREFERTETESE
EREFEEERESSRE[ERE
SHEI B R MRS 27IE o AEE L
TEEHMEERERTES -

The details of share options granted to certain directors under the
Company'’s share option scheme are disclosed under the paragraph
“Share Option Scheme” in the Report of the Directors and note 27.
No share options were granted to the directors in the current or

prior year.
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9 EEME&E AT
ERUMEBEZ AL mfy (ZF
2\F mf) AES - AWM HIE
BRMESESE - A A+ M2 RE
mF

9 Individuals with the highest emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, four (2008:
four) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 8. The
emoluments of the other individual are as follows:

2009 2008

$°000 $°000

FeRkEMME Salaries and other emoluments 650 910
) 7E T8 AT Discretionary bonuses 500 1,000
R RET B Retirement scheme contributions 60 60
1,210 1,970

—R (ZBENF : D) HERHZA

The emoluments of the one (2008: one) individual with the highest

TrMeBmENT emoluments is within the following band:
2009 2008
A8 AE
Number of Number of
$ individuals individuals
1,000,001 - 1,500,000 1 _

1,500,001 - 2,000,000

10 & 2 5] # & Ix 5 FE 16 ik #

AAREEREEESREETBE—%F
B A AR R B 3R 3K 2 4 $152,805,000
T (ZZZT/\4F : 139,953,0007t) (M &t
FE29(0)E) o

2008/09 Annual Report
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10 Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company
The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company includes a profit of $52,805,000 (2008: $139,953,000)

which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the
Company (note 29(b)).



11 2 11 Dividends

@ FAFEEBWLZENTEREZEK (@ Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
BERE attributable to the year
2009 2008
$°000 $'000
EEREZNHERS Interim dividend declared and
T A AR 10 B AL paid of 10 cents (2008: 13 cents)
(ZZZN\F : §R13 311 per ordinary share 15,383 19,998
REHEREEZDREFRIRE Special dividend proposed after the
TakeRIEEN balance sheet date of Nil cents
(ZZ2ZN\F : FR30EA) (2008: 30 cents) per ordinary share - 46,150
REEBEREZDERRBARE Final dividend proposed after the
Ry el balance sheet date of 28 cents
ZET)N\F - FR32B) (2008: 32 cents) per ordinary share 43,073 49,226
58,456 115,374
REEHERZ D RZ AR E (= The final dividend (2008: special and final dividends) proposed
ZENF  FRIRKRBARKRE) MK after the balance sheet date has not been recognised as a
EHEHERBEAE - liability at the balance sheet date.
b) BLEHKFEENTERAER (b) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
BRRELRE (ERFAEHERIK attributable to the previous financial year, approved and paid
11) during the year
2009 2008
$°000 $'000
FEYBREE2FRIRE Special dividend in respect of the
T A = AR 3078 (1L previous financial year, approved
(BRFRERERIKA) and paid during the year, of 30 cents
(ZZEZENF  FRZEN) (2008: Nil cents) per ordinary share 46,150 -
FEYBREE 2 REARE Final dividend in respect of the
T E A = R 327 1 previous financial year, approved
(B R F N & ROR) and paid during the year, of 32 cents
(ZZ2ZNF : §R32 B (2008: 32 cents) per ordinary share 49,226 49,226
95,376 49,226

2008/09 4R 74
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BEREH

@ FREZXEF
EREREBFZRBARER 2 ARQ
7] 18 A% % B FE {4 F180,187,0007T
(ZZF N4 : 170,997,000 7T) K E

BT L MAYE153,831,7920% (2
JVEE : 153,831,792/%) Ei@ARstE -

b) EFHKRBEREF

HR-ZEZNFR-_ZFETNFEY
BEEEEENBENEBRFE

Bt —ETNER_TTN\EFE
BEERNEERERNBN —% -

o, E

DHEHBRRASE ZEBRILE D
FH2M - AR EB O HER B AREE
ZABHBERTHEZERR - MEE
RBEDHMERZETERA -

%ﬁ/'\.\;

ARBIEIEEBHBMT -

- HERKAE - FERBEK
7K o

- BENEELRABNEDE  FRAEMNK
HZBERERRFFA -

— HIRIRARRER - £ E k&R
Em e
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» 1] LA B # 51 R~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Earnings per share

(@ Basic earnings per share
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the
Company of $80,187,000 (2008: $170,997,000) and
158,831,792 (2008: 153,831,792) ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

(b) Diluted earnings per share

The Company did not have dilutive potential ordinary shares
outstanding during both 2009 and 2008. Accordingly, the
diluted earnings per share is the same as the basic earnings
per share for both 2009 and 2008.

Segment reporting

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s business
and geographical segments. Business segment information is
chosen as the primary reporting format because this is more relevant
to the Group’s internal financial reporting.

Business segments

The Group comprises the following main business segments:

—  Sales of garments: the manufacture, retail and wholesale of
garments.

- Royalty and related income: the management and licensing
of a trademark for royalty income.

—  Printing and related services: the manufacture and sale of
printed products.

—  Property rental: the leasing of properties to generate rental
income.
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13 Segment reporting (continued)

EHBTE(E) Business segments (continued)
EHiEE
HERRK Rigm EIRI RABRRARES LIESiL pixl A3t &8
Royalty and Printing and Inter-segment
Sales of garments  related income related services Property rental elimination Consolidated
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
$000  $000  §000  $000 000  §000  $000  H000  $000 000  H000  $000
RESNFEE  Revenue fom external
WA customers 873405 993303 59,533 65,145 34675 38981 4323 7,686 - - 97,93 1,110,115
REEMHAE  Inter-segment
ZHA fevenus - - - 1007 2198 2087 6500 6529 (8702 (10223 - -
B Total 873405 998303 59,533 66,152 36,868 41668 10,832 14215  (8,702) (10223) 971,936 1,110,115
HHEE Segment result 86,955 84799 5221 5807 3882 6204 5328 6,168 100,986 103,158
PEETS  Intersegment
transactions 37110 3259 - (101) 290 (252) (4,000  (2,906) - -
FH@EFE  Contribution from
operations 90,265 88058 5221  57% 4172 6042 1,328 3262 100,986 103,158
AAEEE  Unallocated operating
WHEREST  income and
expenses (12,262) (643)
@M Profit fom operations 88,724 102,515
REMEEE  Valuation osses)/
(5%8)/  gains oninvestment
Wiz properties - - - - - - (13,0000 13,400 - - (13,0000 13400
HEXE G ondisposal of
VELIE: investment
properties - - - - - - - 45589 - - - 45589
BEMK  Finance costs (1,119 (4729
fElRB 2 DA Share of profts less
BAEEE  lossesofassociates | 17,012 34,099 - - - - - . - - AT072 34099
FEs Income tax (11,616)  (14,630)
BEEER  Proft after taxation 79468 176244
2008/09 F ¥

/6
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13 Segment reporting (continued)

Business segments (continued)

HERK RigB ENRI R AR BAAR hERE AR &8
Royalty and Printing and
Sales of garments related income related services Property rental Unallocated Consolidated

2009 2008 2009
$000  $000 000

2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

$000  §000  $000  §000  §O00  H000  $OOO  §000  §000

KEERER  Depreciation and

- 1914 1459 - 2129 230 239 32886 29211

£ amortisation for

the year 30,682 25,384
SHEE  Segment assels 336,490 296167 127,345
BANFES  Interestinassociates | 105,242 123,430

APEEAE  Undlocated assets S -
EERE Total assets

APHEE  Unallocated liabilties - -
BEZE  Totd liabilties

ERESZ  Capital expendiure
BATH  incurred during
the year 26,055 20,020

B 5

REBZEKBREREM  BER=E
FEEBERBEPLE  BAERBM -
BERPEEMMEY ARNEBKKE
Wz TEME o — T T 7 F U HESociété
Guy Laroche & + ZN % [& 7] 38 3@ % ) Guy
Laroche B 1% 2 15 5T 4 B 2 DR & Mo B UK
AN BERBMAAEB 2 A EME
BZEBWE -

E2iR o BERE - 2 EBBRARK
EPZHEMAHEEE - DHEER
BEARSHANEEZ A R EEE -

193315 25,176 15073 53423 128877

FHEE Segment liabilties 114978 126931 28,233 43898 4435 4274 30 59871

- - 542434 593432
- - - - - 4720 4720 109,962 128,150
- - - - - 339,168 396,132 339,168 396,132

991,564 1,117,714

- - 147,956 180,974
45,361 76563 45361 76,563

198,317 257,537

- 566 178 - - - 10 26621 20208

Geographical segments

The Group’s business is managed on a worldwide basis, but
participates in three principal economic environments. Hong Kong
and Macau, Taiwan and other areas of the PRC are the major
markets for the Group’s garment business. Following the acquisition
of Société Guy Laroche in 2005, the Group has a worldwide revenue
stream from licensing the Guy Laroche trademark. Hong Kong and
Macau is the major market for all of the Group’s other businesses.

In presenting information on the basis of geographical segments,
segment revenue is based on the geographical location of
customers. Segment assets and capital expenditure are based on
the geographical location of the assets.

BRI & PEEHBE 2 i
Hong Kong and Other areas of
Macau Taiwan the PRC Others Total
2009 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $'000
RENREF Revenue from external
WA customers 439,666 468,770 109,309 137342 358,674 429817 64,287 74186 971,936 1,110,115
NHAE Segment assets 243,023 264541 154,345 175209 110,013 105441 140,205 171581 647,676 716,862
EMEEZ Capital expenditure incurred
BARH during the year 9,535 2085 3202 18457 8235 694 1234 26621 20,208

)9 Annual Report
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14 BEBEEE 14 Fixed assets
@ F£H (@ The Group
RIBEER
f#EER HElT EfifeER
ZiHR BER KB RE. ZHELH
B¥ Ha Ve INgt Ea hang it
Interest in
leasehold
Leasehold land held
Land and improvements, for own use
buildings motor vehicles, under
held for Plantand  furniture and operating  Investment
own use machinery  equipment  Sub-total lease properties Total
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
RASfE: Cost o valuation:
RZFTLEMA-A At 1 April 2007 18,137 46,111 118,421 282,609 7,117 81,900 372,286
AR Exchange adjustments 3226 2,250 6,561 12,037 785 - 12,792
RE Additions - 862 19,346 20,208 - - 20,208
HE Disposals - (995) (21,329 (22,324) - (29,000) (61,324)
ATEERE Fair value adjustment - - - - - 13400 13400
RZZENEZA=+—H At31 March2008 121,363 48,208 122,999 292,690 8412 66,300 367,362
ft%: Representing:
S Cost 121,363 48,228 122,099 292,590 8472 - 301,082
BE-—ZENE Vialuation - 2008 - - - - - 66,300 66,300
121,363 48,228 122,999 292,590 8412 66,300 367,362
RZTE/\EMA-A At 1 April 2008 121,363 48,208 122,999 292,690 8412 66,300 367,362
ERAE Exchange adjustments 782 516 2.339) (1,041) 183 - (858)
RE Additions - 1,191 25,430 26,621 - - 26,621
il Disposals - 912) (13,121) (14,033 - - (14,083)
ATEERR Fair value adjustment - - - - - (13,000 (13,000)
RZEFENEZA=+—H At31 March 2009 122,145 49,023 132,969 304,137 8,605 53,300 366,092
% : Representing:
A Cost 122,145 49,023 132,969 304,137 8,605 - 312,792
BE-—SENE Valuation - 2009 - - - - - 53,300 53,300
122,145 49,023 132,969 304,137 8,605 53,300 366,092

2008/09 F i
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14 BE&EE (@)
@) *EBH (H)

14 Fixed assets (continued)

(@ The Group (continued)

REBEEH
ftER HERY ErfEER
2R BER kB RE. ZHELTH
¥ Ha YV E gt #a Rang it
Interest in
leasehold
Leasehold land held
Land and improvements, for own use
buildings motor vehicles, under
held for Plantand  furniture and operating Investment
own use machinery  equipment  Sub-total lease properties Total
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
RitHBERNE Accumulated
amortisation and
depreciation:
RZE5tEMA-A At 1 April 2007 34,805 33,791 78,081 146,677 2501 - 149,178
EiHE Exchange adjustments 1355 1165 3,773 6,293 253 - 6,546
FERBERTE Charge for the year 2,631 2521 23,132 28,284 147 - 28431
HEREE Written back on disposals - 995) (16,686) (17,681) - - (17,681)
RZEENFZA=T—H At31 March 2008 38,791 36,482 88,300 163,573 2,901 - 166,474
RZZENERA-A At 1 April 2008 38,791 36,482 88,300 163,573 2901 - 166,474
ERAE Exchange adjustments 333 247 (1574) (994) 63 - (931)
AERBERTE Charge for the year 2670 2205 27073 31,948 158 - 32,106
LEREE Written back on disposals - [912) (12,020) (12,932) - - (12,939)
RZZEAFZA=T—H At31 March2009 41,794 38,022 101,779 181,595 3122 - 184,717
REFE Net book value:
RZESNFZAZ+-H At31 March 2009 80,351 11,001 31,190 122,542 5,583 53,300 181,375
RZESNEZA=+-H At31 March 2008 82,672 11,746 34,699 129,017 5,571 66,300 200,888

2008/09 Annual Report
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14 BE&EE (&) 14 Fixed assets (continued)
(b) & 27 (b) The Company
HEEFRE -
RE - R RRE
Leasehold improvements,
motor vehicles, furniture
and equipment
2009 2008
$°000 $'000
mx Cost:
M A—H At 1 April 5,572 6,125
NE Additions - 10
& Disposals - (563)
W=A=+—8 At 31 March 5,572 5,572
BEtinE - Accumulated depreciation:
R A—H At 1 April 5,041 5,367
KEEFEHE Charge for the year 230 237
i & R T Written back on disposals - (563)
W=RAR=+—H At 31 March 5,271 5,041
FREFE : Net book value:
W=A=+—8 At 31 March 301 531
(0 AEBFREREMEER =TT (c) Allinvestment properties of the Group were revalued as at 31
FZRAR=1T—BEHBLAERTT March 2009 on an open market value basis calculated by
E-ARVEeTHEREERERSE reference to net rental income allowing for reversionary income
RARIE2BRHASRAFELEE potential. The valuations were carried out by an independent
ImETSBEHSELFTEZR firm of surveyors, Savills Valuation and Professional Services
FAmEELEETHE ZLAFAZE Limited, who have among their staff Fellows of the Hong Kong
ITRESAEMEEEFTEE ¥ Institute of Surveyors with recent experience in the location
FriEWMEAE RIERH R H & and category of the properties being valued.
fﬁ o

2008/09 4F 80
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14 BEEE (&) 14 Fixed assets (continued)
(d) REBYEZEEFESIMGES N (d) The analysis of net book value or valuation of properties of the
wmr Group is as follows:
2009 2008
$’000 $'000
B In Hong Kong
—REHEE - long leases 39,003 40,010
—HHEE — medium-term leases 63,645 77,426
BB R Outside Hong Kong
—HHEE - medium-term leases 25,696 25,825
—RHEHEE — short-term leases 10,840 11,182
139,184 154,443
& : Representing:
T REF Land and buildings 80,351 82,572
&Y Investment properties 53,300 66,300
133,651 148,872
R EHEREAR Interest in leasehold land held for
ZHE L own use under operating lease 5,533 5,571
139,184 154,443
() WEMEFRBEETEETEER (e) Included in investment properties are certain properties with
10,900,000 (Z&EZT )\ &F ¢ an aggregate carrying value of $10,900,000 (2008:
53,700,0007T) 2 W1 % + ZEWMHEE $53,700,000) which are pledged to banks for obtaining
EHRFRITUIRERTEE - MR banking facilities of which $Nil (2008: $1,131,000) was utilised
—EEAFE=ZA=+—H BEFEH as at 31 March 2009.

ZRTEESHEAEAT L (=
Z N\ ¢ 1,131,0007T) °
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14 Fixed assets (continued)

) AREBEKEYWEZFBTOT (f)  Details of the Group’s investment properties are as follows:
Term of
h 2 B & A& FHE Location Existing use lease
NEFHERE KRB F209 PHAE H G/F and M/F, 20 Tai Yau Street, Offices and Medium
# TR EE T San Po Kong, Kowloon factories
NEEF H M AT 185 T e G/F, 18 Ng Fong Street, Factories and Medium
b S San Po Kong, Kowloon shops
BEM YR B B H45% WNE H Unit B, C, D, G and H on 7/F, Offices, Medium
HIETEKRETE TR & and Car Parking Space factories and
B-C: D GKHE " 5B No. 8 on 1/F, warehouses
SRk A CN=Rvi Wah Shun Industrial Building,
4 Cho Yuen Street, Yau Tong,
Kowloon
JLBE B 5 A7 2858 T H Unit Nos. 2 and 4 on 6/F, and Factories Medium
R FF TR oK E6iE Unit Nos. 1 and 2 on 8/F,
RAERBEIR2E Lee Sum Factory Building,

@ UEEHEHHZBEEERE -

AEBNKEHEREREDE
HE-—ROFR/HB—Z=0F BF
BEZGCINHARESY ERME
FRATEFEE - SRAKLEHRE
BreassAls -

NREHERAEEE M ST
EREMEEREZNE  BHRES
BREME -

REBBBEIAIBR KEHER
HigER EREMNFBE LD
T

28 Ng Fong Street, Kowloon

(g) Fixed assets leased out under operating leases:

The Group leases out investment properties under operating
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of one to
five years, with an option to renew the lease upon expiry at
which time all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases

includes contingent rentals.

All properties held under operating leases that would otherwise
meet the definition of investment properties are classified as

investment property.

The Group’s total future minimum lease receipts under non-
cancellable operating leases are receivable as follows:

2009 2008
$°000 $'000
—F R Within 1 year 2,629 2,876
—FEBEREFA After 1 year but within 5 years 367 2,940
2,996 5,816

82
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15 B EE

15 Intangible assets

A&EHE
The Group
g [k Fok ]
Licence Trademarks Total
$°000 $°000 $°000
)% - Cost:
N_ZEELFMA—H At 1 April 2007 9,364 102,125 111,489
HE Disposal - (75) (75)
RZZTZENF=ZA=+—H " At31 March 2008,
ZEENFHA-BR 1 April 2008
—EENF=ZA=+—H and 31 March 2009 9,364 102,050 111,414
Bt Accumulated amortisation:
RZZEZ+FMHA—H At 1 April 2007 2,145 - 2,145
REEHH Charge for the year 780 - 780
R-ZZEENFE=ZA=+—H At 31 March 2008 2,925 - 2,925
RZZEZNFHA—H At 1 April 2008 2,925 - 2,925
REEHE Charge for the year 780 - 780
RZEZAF=FR=+—8H At 31 March 2009 3,705 - 3,705
BREE(E : Net book value:
RZEZEAF=R=+—H At 31 March 2009 5,659 102,050 107,709
RZZEZNF=A=+—H At 31 March 2008 6,439 102,050 108,489
—_EENFZA=+—BHLEFER K During the year ended 31 March 2008, the Group disposed of its
& B A 342,0007T .« FT 15 3B 1 & H [Mic “Mic Mac” trademark for proceeds of $342,000 realising a gain of
Mac] 1% - $%13 U8 25 267,0007T (Ki 51 5 $267,000 (note 4).
478) ©
Guy Larochef E R /EP] R EAE A - I The Guy Laroche trademark is considered to have an indefinite
BIBESETBRWFEEI)EAR - useful life and is accounted for in accordance with accounting policy
note 1(j).
RRZ+ - F (AZBERBR G ERT The licence is amortised over a period of 12 years being the
BR) 2 HAMRESE - AFE 2 HEB AT estimated useful life of the licence. The amortisation charge for the

AGEBERZ[DHEKA] -

year is included within “Distribution costs” in the consolidated profit
and loss account.
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| EE (&)
7 [ 5 T AT I E B R A e 18 0

Guy Larochef 1% Al 7 54 Rl J8 37 7 5l 2 Guy
Laroche% 7 °

Guy Larochef& 1% 2 7] g Bl & 58 T5 1R ¥ &
FAEBEEETE -BEATEEAKER
Bz AFHESREEE - AFH
BZERERERATHEXIEY - T8
EBEE TRESBAIKEZEEBR
ZEMEEAEED BT EHRER
BERBEATYESRE -

AEEREEREAZEIEMRR

15 Intangible assets (continued)

Impairment test for trademark with indefinite useful economic
life

The Guy Laroche trademark services the Guy Laroche operations
which are separately identifiable.

The recoverable amount of the Guy Laroche trademark has been
determined based on value-in-use calculations. The calculation uses
cash flow projections based on a five-year period approved by
management. Cash flows beyond the five-year period have been
extrapolated without any growth rate. Management believes that
any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions on which
the recoverable amount is based would not cause the carrying
amount to exceed its recoverable amount.

Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculation:

2009 2008
— R X — Growth rate 0% 0%
— AR X — Gross contribution rate 89% 89%
— ¥ IH % — Discount rate 8% 10%

EEERBAEERAREEMEERZ
EMETERERBEREX - FTAZH
BER/AEEZMEFHESKAE

Management determined the growth rate and gross contribution
rate based on the past performance and its expectations for market
development. The discount rate used is the weighted average cost
of capital of the Group.

HE#EEHR 16 Lease premium
E3 1]
The Group

2009 2008

$°000 $'000
R AR Cost 9,595 9,595
b 5 5 & Exchange adjustments 132 2,101

9,727 11,696

HERZRERHKNBEARSRE LR
—HMERZHERM N 2 8EE - W
MEARABERZYE  MERKHE
ERLETT—EAEAE At HE#®
ERRGRBERERBUBKLESFS
REEBBRPERAABRBEBEIE -

Lease premium represents an amount paid by a subsidiary to obtain
the right to lease a property in France. In the event that the subsidiary
vacates the property, the subsidiary would be entitled to sell the
right to the lease to the next tenant. Accordingly, the lease premium
is considered to have an indefinite useful economic life and is carried
in the balance sheet at cost less impairment losses.
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17 HEBASIKE

18

17 Investments in subsidiaries

AA T

The Company
2009 2008
$°000 $°000
ELETRG  EBKAE Unlisted shares, at cost 11,003 11,003
= NGIE ] Amounts due from subsidiaries 578,997 665,147
590,000 676,150
AR NGIE S| Amounts due to subsidiaries (3,624) (40,451)
586,376 635,699
W R EE B Less: Impairment losses (119,900) (72,850)
466,476 562,849

UK FE T B A BRI EER - %
EREETEERS  BEEMNEER—
FATEEER-

ZEENBRARIZERFBHMNEI9
BZ%1208 -

BMEABHER

Amounts due from and to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free
and have no fixed terms of repayment but are not expected to be
settled within one year from the balance sheet date.

Details of the principal subsidiaries are set out on pages 119 to

120.

18 Interest in associates

& AAT
The Group The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
$°000 $'000 $°000 $°000
JELTES K AE  Unlisted shares, at cost = - 30,000 30,000
EWEHF BN E Listed shares, at cost =

EIEEEFE Share of net assets

A OREEE Less: Impairment loss

(@) —EBEENE=ZA=+—BILtEE
N AEBHEER —BBERQR
2R 2B EE330)E R
BN AEEMERERBEARA
7,799,000 2 EF - 2B =TS
33(d)A °

b)) RZEZTAF=A=+—H8 &RQ
AR b FTHREEBR ST
{8 459,354,000 (Z & T )\ F :
118,708,0007T) °

(a)

(b)

- 12,595 12,595
109,962 128,150 - -

109,962 128,150 42,595 42,595
(25,280) (25,280)

109,962 128,150 17,315 17,315

During the year ended 31 March 2008, the Group disposed
of its interest in an associate, see note 33(c). On disposal, a
loan receivable of the Group amounting to $7,799,000 was
written off, see note 33(d).

The market value of the Company’s interest in the ordinary
shares of the above listed investment at 31 March 2009 was
$59,354,000 (2008: $118,708,000).
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18 Interest in associates (continued)

AZ+=ZH &%
EERAROER

REERAR R = WERAREE
IZEATMéMZTﬁ%m REHAR
#11,980,0007T (48 % 7 13,585,000
) RZEENF=A=+—H"
G E LN a2 RkEES
4,720,0007C ° "R 5 2 K B L F
EARLFBEAGEIPIME - T =
BERABBE R EEMET -

(d BEAGEHHE
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(c) On 22 January 2009, the Group has entered into an agreement
with an independent third party to dispose of its interest in an
associate, Hunan San Jiu Nankai Pharmaceutical Company
Limited for a consideration of approximately RMB11,980,000
(equivalent to $13,585,000). The carrying value of the interest
in this associate amounted to $4,720,000 at 31 March 2009.
The completion of this transaction is subject to the approval
of relevant government authorities in the PRC and the
completion of relevant business registration procedures.

(d) Summary information on associates:

BE BfE i PN it Fl
Assets Liabilities Equity Revenue Profit
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $'000
—EEAE 2009
100% 100 percent 1,181,556  (630,917) 550,639 2,033,908 79,862
REBZEREZ  Group’s effective interest 243,825 (133,863) 109,962 416,863 17,072
—EENE 2008
100% 100 percent 1,295,255  (660,690) 634,565 2,196,633 168,307
REBEZER®EZ  Group's effective interest 266,911  (138,761) 128,150 450,756 34,099

BFIEMERRIZANFRIANSE
121BEEH 1228 °

Details of the principal associates are set out on pages 121 to

122.

HtbhkRBUBEE 19 Other non-current financial assets
rE&E AAT
The Group The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
$’000 $'000 $°000 $'000
BAEEINNEBES Held-to-maturity debt
securities
L™ Unlisted 961 1,294 - -
HibrAES Other equity securities
JEETRAE Unlisted equity security 6,900 6,900 = -
B OREREE Less: Impairment loss (6,900) (6,900) - -
R /NCIN Ny Loan to associate and accrued
B (Mf3E % 33(e)8) interest (note 33(e)) 33,681 33,834 33,681 33,834
34,642 35,128 33,681 33,834
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19 BHFEREBUBEE (&) 19 Other non-current financial assets (continued)

(a) BMERRZERSEERR  UFE
KoEF B RANB K AR 10F1&
RZT——F+—-ANLBEE-

GHENRERREEB 2 ATFEE
£32,261,000c (ZZEZ )\ F :
32,620,0007T) ° A F{BIE T AR K
RenmssHAERRAEVYFEIA
RITMBAEFREGE -

b) HEABEFRASERFERR
NAEIZEE -

(a)

(b)

The loan to associate is unsecured, interest bearing at 6%
per annum and repayable after ten years from the date of
advance on 9 November 2011.

The fair value of the loan to associate at the balance sheet
date is $32,261,000 (2008: $32,620,000). The fair value is
estimated as the present value of future cash flows, discounted
at current market interest rates for similar financial instruments.

Other equity securities represents the Group’s investment in a
corporation in the PRC.

20 FEEREZESH 20 Trading securities
XE AAT
The Group The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
$°000 $000 $’000 $'000
EBERHEZES Trading securities
(W E) (at market value)
EmRAE S Listed equity securities
—REE —in Hong Kong 993 2,564 993 2,564
— BB AN R — outside Hong Kong - 2,794 - 2,794
993 5,358 993 5,358
FTHEBES Listed debt securities
— BB AN — outside Hong Kong 3,544 6,565 - -
4,537 11,923 993 5,358
21 & & 21 Inventories
@ BEEBFZAZFEGGRE: (@) Inventories in the balance sheet comprise:
A&
The Group
2009 2008
$’000 $'000
R Raw materials 19,851 18,972
& m Work in progress 3,316 6,360
AKX on Finished goods 117,186 112,377
140,353 137,709




21

22

58 @ 21 Inventories (continued)

b) ERBEAZHFEHETNHOT (b) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense is as follows:
xE
The Group
2009 2008
$°000 $'000
EEFEZREE Carrying amount of inventories sold 385,935 435,935
(WOR B ) /17 & #OR (Reversal of write-down)/write-down of
inventories (6,607) 2,726
379,328 438,661
EFFEMOB AR T BN E IR M The reversal of write-down of inventories made in prior years
ZHBMSIBUK KO ERSRER arose due to an increase in the estimated realisable value of
B e garments as a result of a change in consumer preferences.
FE W AR =% & H fth FE Yy &K 22 Trade and other receivables
& XAT
The Group The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
$’000 $'000 $°000 $'000
JE R BR 3R % e U 2R R Debtors and bills receivable 64,060 87,687 = -
B B AR A Less: Allowance for doubtful
debts (12,159) (15,122) - -
51,901 72,565 - -
e RBEAR Deposits and prepayments 50,143 61,379 340 648
JE W B 3 A B 5RIE Amounts due from related
companies 3,970 3,882 - 139
e Club memberships 860 860 750 750
106,874 138,686 1,090 1,537
AEB RARRDE A YRR R E i All of the Group’s and the Company’s trade and other receivables,
Wk (remgEkizses  AEEER apart from club memberships and deposits, of $24,921,000 (2008:
NEEEE D B A24,921,0007T (ZEE )N $33,332,000) and $750,000 (2008: $750,000) respectively, are
% : 33,332,0007T) K 750,0007T (=& & expected to be recovered or recognised as expense within one
JVE : 750,0007T)) @ TEEARI A —F A year.
KWeEsERAEER -
2008/09 F ¥
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22 FE W BR FR & H fth FE Wg =X (&)

(@ KRB

TR LT B A3 e L Al R LA R B 4 R LR B
RERRER (2 MERZRRBE
EBR)  HEBEzZ#8R Kk

fic 3 A

(@ Ageing analysis

22 Trade and other receivables (continued)

Included in trade and other receivables are trade debtors and
bills receivable (net of impairment losses for bad and doubtful
debts) with the following ageing analysis as of the balance

wm sheet date:
P
The Group
2009 2008
$°000 $°000
> i 2B Current 46,416 66,522
A —= =@ A 1 to 3 months 5,069 4,798
BHEE B =@ A More than 3 months but
BLR+ @A less than 12 months 416 1,245
51,901 72,565

R R R B RBE IR ER A
%#30ENHANEH - AEEEFEEK
RZE - T FBEHNMEFE30()

I8 o

(b) B IR 5k K FE W 55 2 6l E

BRRUERREBRREZBER
BRABEBRTURE  BRIELRE
B EWEZRA AR ERE
RIEBERT - BMEEBBREZENEKR
R kW RE S ME (2

FAKOE)

FR XERBZEYH(BREFT

REBEBRMM OT

(b) Impairment of trade debtors and bills receivable

Trade debtors and bills receivable are due within 30 to 90
days from the date of billing. Further details on the Group’s
credit policy is set out in note 30(a).

Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors and bills
receivable are recorded using an allowance account unless
the Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote,
in which case the impairment loss is written off against trade
debtors and bills receivable directly (see note 1(k)(i)).

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the

year, including both specific and collective loss components,

is as follows:
&
The Group
2009 2008
$°000 $°000
R A—H At 1 April 15,122 8,550
b 5 38 & Exchange adjustments (2,013) 1,455
BRERBEEIE (B EE5(c)™)  Impairment loss recognised (note 5(c)) 2,833 6,317
i E AT Bl 2 & 58 Uncollectible amounts written off (3,783) (1,200)
R=ZA=Z+—H At 31 March 12,159 15,122
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22 FEWG BR 3k B H 4th FE WL 3% (&)
(b) FEUWFE % FE W 2 18 2 6l 18 ()

(©)

R-ZZTEZAF=A=1+—H K&
%] 58 75 T /% 7 FE UK BR 306,000,0007T
(ZZZ \ £ : 3,595,0007T) H 3
B -ZEETEAWHETAREZE
WHREERGERETFERA -
BEEENG  BHETKEZE
Uz —3H - At - BHERZ
1 RERBE 55,335,0000T (Z 2 Z
J\EE : 3,497,0007T) ° A% B0 £ 51
DEEHBBEAEMNERS -

I 4 B 18 2 FE KRR X

I 4 18 51| 2k 5% B8 AR AR A R (B 2 B IR
Rz AT -

22 Trade and other receivables (continued)

(b)

(©

Impairment of trade debtors and bills receivable (continued)

At 31 March 2009, the Group’s trade debtors of $6,000,000
(2008: $3,595,000) were individually determined to be
impaired. The individually impaired receivables related to
customers that were in financial difficulties and management
assessed that only a portion of the receivables is expected to
be recovered. Consequently, specific allowances for doubtful
debts of $5,335,000 (2008: $3,497,000) were recognised. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Trade debtors that are not impaired

The ageing analysis of trade debtors that are neither individually
nor collectively considered to be impaired are as follows:

b -~
The Group

2009 2008

$°000 $°000

KRB Neither past due nor impaired 30,446 49,179

wH R —1{E A Less than 1 month past due 14,954 16,778

mE—= =@ A 1 to 3 months past due 5,410 5,262
# Hi R i = & A More than 3 months

BLR+Z{EAR but less than 12 months 426 1,248

20,790 23,288

51,236 72,467

MEAMNHEZ BRKERS T
BOMRRGLREZEFPAR -

ERMEEREZERERESZE
VEFEMR ZFTEFPEAKEZ
SERERI - RIEBELR - &
REEGRUBEERNEE  BEH
MR R R BB D - #E IR E A
EHARMEERIELRERS -
AEE W EL U FEBRFT B TMAE
Mmoo

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to
a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent
history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.
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WHERALEEEY

23 Cash and cash equivalents

XE AAT
The Group The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
$°000 $'000 $°000 $°000
R1T R H A BT 7% Deposits with banks and
R 2175 other financial institutions 123,526 93,555 122,458 85,500
ReEFRrkRE Cash at bank and in hand 115,089 183,078 10,233 4,205
BEAGBRAT~Z Cash and cash equivalents in
HekBeEED the balance sheet 238,615 276,633 132,691 89,705
R1TE S (M 5E82578)  Bank overdrafts (note 25) (12,617) (20,089)
RERERERAT Cash and cash equivalents in
ZHRERBAEE the consolidated cash flow
By statement 225,998 256,544
24 FE 4 BR X R H M FE 4 &K 24 Trade and other payables
X5 AAT
The Group The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
$°000 $'000 $°000 $°000
JE T E & Bills payable 1,377 1,995 1,377 1,995
JEREBER N ESTE A Creditors and accrued charges| 151,923 179,586 5,742 5,645
iRz R NGIF Amounts due to related
companies 1,921 7,059 119 -
155,221 188,640 7,238 7,640

PrARMNERRREMEMNRBEBRER —

FAREE -

AR R EAMENRBEEMRRAR

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled within

one year.

Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors and bills

ENZEE  EBZEFRAZ2ERERI>TA payable with the following ageing analysis as of the balance sheet
™ date:
V. - XA T
The Group The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
$°000 $'000 $°000 $°000
— @ AR EEE Due within 1 month or
3/ AR 21| B on demand 22,665 23,977 1,377 1,995
— @ A#%EE Due after 1 month but within
=EAREH 3 months 14,086 27,929 - -
—@A®E Due after 3 months but within
7~ E A R E ES 6 months 1,935 1,259 - -
NE A &R Due after 6 months but within
+ {8 A A A 12 months 947 1,438 - -
39,633 54,603 1,377 1,995
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25 RITERRERX

26

RZEZAF=A=+—H  RITEXK

25

Bank loans and overdrafts

At 31 March 2009, the bank loans and overdrafts were repayable

REXZERHNOT as follows:
X%
The Group
2009 2008
$°000 $'000
—FANEEBAN Within 1 year or on demand 14,518 38,942
—FREMRFTR After 1 year but within 2 years 1,947 2,237
FEZRBRFRA After 2 years but within 5 years 1,520 4,169
3,467 6,406
17,985 45,348

R-BEAF=A=+-R0 BRAER
REZZEABERDT

At 31 March 2009, the unsecured bank loans and overdrafts were
as follows:

P
The Group

2009 2008

$°000 $'000

R1718 X (M55 2318) Bank overdrafts (note 23) 12,617 20,089
RITER Bank loans 5,368 25,259
17,985 45,348

—H- As at 31 March 2009 and 2008, the Group’s banking facilities were

RIEBEEAN_EENFE=ZA=
AEEFMBRITEEYHAEDHEIER
EEABBEZRE -

& & & & & 7l
AEBEDNZRBREB(CRBIMERE S E
RO 2 HE - BRBEEECERBIEH)D
BRzZEERIBHMEAESE (58
BEstE]) BB -HATEHR
RBRARFE - ABUXTEABEER -
RipgESTE  BIREESEARE
B AR A Z 5% %At &I1EH #H5
RABEBWKAZ LR /20,0007 ° [ #Zat
SR 2R TIAERRE -

26

not subject to the fulfillment of financial covenants.

Employee retirement benefits

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction
of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a
defined contribution retirement scheme administered by
independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and
its employees are each required to make contributions to the
scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap
of monthly relevant income of $20,000. Contributions to the scheme
vest immediately.

2008/09 FF
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26 EERHKTBEA (&)

£ B N R B R A RE R AR SZ 2 F 2 )
SMEREBERN N RTEIEERE
BB RERTENRGE - ZFHK
RXMEEERFERMOE -

—EESERIZMERRREE (S
BRAER) 2 E— IR TR RS
A L 2R IRE XN TE R#
&2 2%t H o At B ANKEIL BN
BEAZHE HMRARBEGHNAE

Wi 2 (B R G ER)F15% [ELF

B -

27 BRHEEERX S

AARRZZEZENMFNA-+T=ZBEH
BARREE Bt AR ESERE
AMBEATRFALEEZES F BEAX
EETMAGZES  UWEREBEENE
BREUNRBARAZKD - ZSERE
RELHHEBIOKAEE  REE+TFR
AFITE cSEHBERECHSBEAGE
RERAQA—BRLBER -

@ UTEREEFERTEBREZKS
Rigt  FFERBKESEBEEX

26

27

Employee retirement benefits (continued)

Subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC and France participate in the
defined contribution retirement schemes operated by the local
authorities for employees in the PRC and France, respectively.
Contributions to these schemes are charged to the profit and loss
account when incurred.

A subsidiary established in Taiwan participates in a defined benefit
retirement plan established in accordance with the local Labour
Standards Law. Contributions to the plan are based upon 2% of
wages and salaries paid. The scheme is not material to the Group
and, therefore, the disclosures required by HKAS 19, “Employee
benefits” issued by the HKICPA have not been presented.

Equity settled share-based transactions

The Company has a share option scheme which was adopted on
23 September 2004 whereby the Directors of the Company are
authorised, at their discretion, to invite employees of the Group,
including directors of any company in the Group, to take up options
at nil consideration to subscribe for shares in the Company. The
options vest after 30 days from the date of grant and are then
exercisable within a period of ten years. Each option gives the holder
the right to subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company.

(@ The terms and conditions of the grants that existed during

the years are as follows, whereby all options are settled by

TROEE : physical delivery of shares:
B
BREHE EERH BHIH R
Number of Vesting  Contractual life
instruments conditions of options
RTEEZBRE Options granted to Directors:
-R-EERE—A++A - on 17 January 2005 7,850,000 #{H HHIE30H +&
30 days from 10 years
the date of grant
RTREE 2BRE Options granted to employees:
-RZZTRF-A++tH - on 17 January 2005 4,133,000 # i HH#E30H T4
30 days from 10 years
the date of grant
BRERR Total share options 11,983,000

)9 Annual Report
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27 Equity settled share-based transactions

(continued)

are as follows:

(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices of options

2009 2008
In#EEY fEfziE  mEEH 5 Iz 1%
TiEE Ll =| TEE £ gE|
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number of exercise  Number of
price options price options
$ ’000 $ 000
B ARAITE 2 AR E Outstanding at the beginning
of the period 12.1 11,791 12.1 11,983
HM B Rz R Lapsed during the period 12.1 (124) 12.1 (192)
BR R AT 2 B8 I i Outstanding at the end
of the period 12.1 11,667 12.1 11,791
BAR AT AT 2 B AR 1 Exercisable at the end
of the period 12.1 11,667 12.1 11,791

7N 2R A R 3T T R (AR

ZETNF  E)

RZEZAF=A=+—BRTRE
BREZTEERI1I2AT(ZEZN
F1247T) - BTG HF
BRAEF (ZZTTNF : 7F) -

No options were granted or exercised during the year (2008:

Nil).

The options outstanding at 31 March 2009 had an exercise
price of $12.1 (2008: $12.1) and a weighted average remaining
contractual life of 6 years (2008: 7 years).

BEEEBERZHAEH 28 Income tax in the balance sheet
) BEREXRFTZABIERS (a) Current taxation in the balance sheets represents:
xE&E AAT
The Group The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
$°000 $000 $’000 $'000
REEBEEMNEHEHE  Provision for Hong Kong
Profits Tax for the year 8,575 11,231 465 720
EREHNEH Provisional Profits Tax paid (9,972) (12,711) (773) (828)
(1,397) (1,480) (308) (108)
EB MR TIEXE®  Provision for tax outside
Hong Kong 8,236 7,966 - -
REAFR IR Current taxation 6,839 6,486 (308) (108)
DML Analysed as follows:
N H ] R B 77 I8 Current tax recoverable (2,091) (3,406) (308) (108)
NERFET FTIS R Current tax payable 8,930 9,892 = -
6,839 6,486 (308) (108)
2008/09 &
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2 BEBERZHAEH @ 28 Income tax in the balance sheet (continued)
b)) EEAFELZHEEENER: (b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:
iy =A~EEH i)  The Group
ERGALEaBRERIE The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities
EFBE(BE) BESHEKR recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and the
EESEHMT movements during the year are as follows:
BHirEZ . HEBREZ
HERERHE Efthx 3 BEHG wE
Depreciation
in excess of
the related Revaluation Future
depreciation of benefit of
EBEHIERE : Deferred tax arising from:  allowances properties Provisions tax losses Total
$000 $°000 $°000 $000 $000
RZZEZ+EMA—A At 1 April 2007 (2,300) 14,457 (17,210) (38,162) (43,215)
SR ‘ Exchange adjustments 1) - (683) (5,603) (6,307
HEHEHRNEL Effect on opening deferred
REGES TR tax balances resulting
from a decrease in tax rate 68 (838) 74 470 (226)
EB&H&RGTA) /3% (Credited)/charged to the
profit and loss account (2,079 1,836 (1,214) (144) (1,601)
WZEZENF=A=F—H At31March 2008 (4,332) 15,455 (19,083 (43,439) (51,349)
EQ_ ST N\ENA—H At 1 April 2008 (4,332) 15,455 (19,083) (43,439) (51,349)
EHAE Exchange adjustments 19 - 809 6,355 7,183
EBERIT/(GtA)  Charged/(credited) to the
profit and loss account 53 (2,145) 5,804 (4,044) (332)
RZZEZNF=F=+—H At31 March 2009 (4,260) 13,310 (12,420) (41,128) (44,498)
(i) A7 (i)  The Company
BEREEBBRERZELER The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in
IE (BE) /aEdH RAFE the balance sheet and the movements during the year
BEMT are as follows:
BHirTERHBEA
ZHEAINE

Depreciation
allowances in

excess of

the related

BEBIERE : Deferred tax arising from: depreciation

$°000

R_ZEZTLFMA—H At 1 April 2007 65
K T X ¥ BR )R A Effect on opening deferred tax balances

MIEEB®R T E resulting from a decrease in tax rate (4)

FFAEZEE Credited to the profit and loss account (21)

RZTEZNF=A=+—H At31March 2008 40

R-ZEZT)N\FMA—H At 1 April 2008 40

FFAEZEE Credited to the profit and loss account (26)

RZTEZNF=A=+—H At31March 2009 14

95 2008/09 Annual Report
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2 BEBBRZHEH @)

(b)

ERAEEZHELEENERE @ (&)
iy ADF(E)

(b)

28 Income tax in the balance sheet (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (continued)

(i) The Company (continued)

x&E AAT
The Group The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
$’000 $'000 $°000 $'000
FEEBERANER Net deferred tax assets
RIERIEEEFE recognised in the
balance sheet (55,679) (65,0006) - -
EEEBBERAER Net deferred tax liabilities
RERIEE EFE recognised in the
balance sheet 11,181 13,657 14 40
(44,498) (51,349) 14 40

(©)

(d)

FERZEEHEEE

KEW NN EFTEER - AEER
1% R 5T £ 15 B 18 11,978,0007T (= &
TN\ 1 15,517,0007T) R AR T
HEEE RFAEHBHEBEER R
M EAMER T TREARRK
JERTAME - EROTMIBERT
SRR S BB I R E e

FERCEEHEEE
RZZEENF=ZA=+—8 " —@
BENFEZWE QR FRIKERF
2 % = 58 5 Rl & 50,659,000
(ZZZT)\#F : 56,728,0007T) &
2,508,000t (ZEZENF : ) °
ERARREFZHBEAR 2K E
BE > MMBEAR NS RELRA
B8 3 4% 7] BE R B Om A1) - B R
RERAT e E D IRZZRDB &M AT
EEBEMPE 2 EEHEAED
A A10,132,000C (ZZZT )\ &F :
11,356,0007T) & 251,000 (Z 2=
NE  Z2jL) »

(o)

(d)

Deferred tax assets not recognised

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(r),
the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect
of cumulative tax losses of $11,978,000 (2008: $15,517,000),
as it is not probable that future taxable profits against which
the losses can be utilised will be available in the relevant tax
jurisdictions and entity. The tax losses do not expire under
current tax legislation.

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

At 31 March 2009, temporary differences relating to the
undistributed profits of subsidiaries based in Taiwan and the
PRC amounted to $50,659,000 (2008: $56,728,000) and
$2,508,000 (2008: $Nil) respectively. Deferred tax liabilities of
$10,132,000 (2008: $11,356,000) and $251,000 (2008: $Nil)
have not been recognised in respect of the tax that would be
payable on the distribution of these retained profits as the
Company controls the dividend policy of these subsidiaries
and it has been determined that it is probable that profits will
not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

2008/09 FF
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29 B A R it 6 29 Capital and reserves
@ F£H (a) The Group
Hgﬁ EY /\
RAEE Zﬁﬁﬂ’ﬂé PERR
Mg kE RHEE E  BRAEE ffE ERE RDHRIN ok i EReE
Associate’s
Capital share
Share Share redemption Capital ~ option Exchange Retained Minority Total
Note capital premium reserve reserve  reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
$'000 $'000 $°000 $°000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
RZEZTEE At April 2007 76,916 133,383 4,646 23,007 703 12,597 476,429 727,681 19,573 747,254
mA—A
BREXK Lapse of share options 27 - - - (369) - - 369 - - -
BAEFECHAE  Dividend approved in
) respect of the previous
year 11(b) . . . . . o {4926 (49.206) - 99
FERBUN  Exchange differences on
WEARHE  transiation of financial
REFMEEZ  statements of
ERER subsidiaries based
outside Hong Kong - - - - - 9,612 - 9,612 1,553 11,165
HEBENE  Exchange reserve
BERZ realised on disposal
MEFE of assoclate - - - - - (167) - (167) - (167)
JE{5BE % N E) 2 Share of exchange reserve
IMERE of associate - - - - - (334) - (334) - (334)
REERM Profit for the year - - - - - - 170997 170,997 5247 176,244
KEFEEER  Dividend declared in
) respect of the current year | 11(a) - - - - - - (19998  (19,998) - (19,998)
fTH#AE  Dividends paid to minority
BazkE interests - - - - - - - - (4,761) (4,761)
“ETN\E
ZA=+—H At 31 March 2008 76,916 133,383 4,646 22,638 703 21,708 578,571 838,565 21,612 860,177
“ZTN\E A1 April 2008 76,916 133,383 4,646 22,638 703 21,708 578,571 838,565 21,612 860,177
MA—H
BRELH Lapse of share options 27 - - - (238) - - 238 - - -
e RAERE  Lapse of associate’s
KX share options - - - - (703) - 703 - - -
BEFECHE Dividends approved in
& respect of the previous
year 11(b) - - - - - - (95,376) (95,376) - (95,376)
FEREUS  Exchange differences on
WELARYE  transiation of financial
WEFMEEZ  statements of
EXRER subsidiaries based
outside Hong Kong - - - - - (7,548) - (7,548) (1,812 (9,360)
JE(5EEZ N E) 2 Share of exchange reserve
MNERE of associate - - - - - R1149) - 1,149 - 114
REEHET Profit for the year - - - - - - 80187 80,187 (119) 79,468
KEEEER  Dividend declared in
K& respect of the current year | 11(a) - - - - - - (15383 (15,389 - (15389
ERAP#EBR  Dividends paid to minority
EazkE interests - - - - - - - - (136) (136)
ZETNE
ZA=+—H At 31 March 2009 76,916 133,383 4,646 22,400 - (6,983) 548,940 779,302 18,945 798,247
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29 I AR it 8 (@) 29 Capital and reserves (continued)

(b) & 27 (b) The Company
N
Mg RE REE BORGE REAHE REEH o
Capital
Share Share redemption ~ Capital Retained
Note capital premium  reserve  reserve profits Total
$000  $000  $000  $000  $000
RZEZS+EWA—H At 1 April 2007 76,916 133,383 4,646 23,007 394,876 632,828
BRELR Lapse of share options 27 - - - (369) 369 -
BAEECHAERS Dividend approved in respect of the
previous year 11(b) - - - - (49,226)  (49,226)
REFEF Profit for the year 10 - - - - 139,953 139,953
KEEDHARS Dividend declared in respect of the
current year 11(a) - - - - (19,998  (19,998)
RZZEZN\FE=A=+—H At 31 March 2008 76,916 133,383 4,646 22,638 465,974 708,557
RZESNEEA—H At 1 April 2008 76,916 133,383 4,646 22,638 465,974 708,557
BRELR Lapse of share options 27 - - - (238) 238 -
BAEEEHERS Dividends approved in respect of the
previous year 11(0) - - - - (95376)  (95,376)
KEFGEH Profit for the year 10 - - - - 52805 52,805
AEFEHERE Dividend declared in respect of the
current year 11(a) - - - - (15,383  (15,383)
RZEZAF=A=FT—H  At31 March 2009 76916 133383 4,646 22,400 408,258 645,603
© KX (c) Share capital
() FEMBBEITRA ()  Authorised and issued share capital
2009 2008
% 85 A% 2
No. of No. of
shares shares
(’000) $°000 ('000) $'000
EERE : Authorised:
K MEE0.507T &% Ordinary shares of $0.50 each 200,000 100,000 200,000 100,000
TER BB Ordinary shares, issued and
R A fully paid 153,832 76,916 153,832 76,916
TEARFBEABREUNRTRE The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
kKRB - BEBRE—RER dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
—ECARRAEHLZEER to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All
o AT ARIIEAREF ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s
MEEZBERSEZ - residual assets.
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(i

REEBRB MR RITEZE
P 2 {5 3K

29 Capital and reserves (continued)

(c) Share capital (continued)

(i

Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at
balance sheet date

ITIEE 2009 2008
Exercise price g H #H
$ Number Number
TEEE Exercise period
—EERE-_A+TRAZE 16 February 2005 to
—E—hF=-A+HH 15 February 2015 121 11,667,000 11,791,000

BEBREZEBEALEER
BARAR—BEBR - -2EH
BREZEZHFBHRYBEHRE
BfsE 582718 o

d) FEZMHEREZE

U

(i)

)

(v)

B 0 0 (B K B 7 P (B {8 5

B% 19 34 18 BR & B% 7K BB o) 36 1% 72
D RIBIEEECAREN) S
48BI&E N AOHIK FE A -

NG

R AN % 8 B2 15 AR 48 BT R 28 1))
ERTE RN RN g5
HRBERAERTARBEE 2
ER R AT ARITHECBRES
BEAFEE-

S| BE {36

SINE e B HE ST H B ANR TS B
BHREAMELEZMBER =
B o HEEHRIEMEE 1()EM
gt ERA -
BERRZBERERE

BAKBEREREBHZQRARET
BRERELZBRERE -

Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for one
ordinary share in the Company. Further details of these
options are set out in note 27 to the financial statements.

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i

(i

(i)

(V)

Share premium and capital redemption reserve

The application of the share premium account and the
capital redemption reserve is governed by sections 48B
and 49H respectively of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises the fair value of the actual
or estimated number of unexercised share options
granted to employees of the Company recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for share-
based payments in note 1(q)(ii).

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies set out
in note 1(u).

Associate’s share option reserve
It represents the Group’s share of an associate’s share

option reserve, which arose on the granting of share
options.
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29 BRARBEE @&

(e)

)

o #7RfEE
RZZEZAF=A=+—H AR
AR TESKRR 2 HEEBSE
£ 408,258,000 (Z & Z )\ F :
465,974,0000T) - REER®E - &%
SRR HI R BT R AR = AR 28l
—EENF  ZEBER2AU) -
EETEBEREFIKRE(ZEE
A\F - ERBREFB0M) - KERE
4 43,073,000 (Z T T )\ F -
49,226,0007T) RERIREZ L (ZF
T )\ : 46,150,0007T) ° ZHK B
REEHHAERBEAE -

EXEHE
AEEEREAZEIZABRRRE
AEERPEBRSBLEREEL
& RmEERRERKFREEZ
EmERBEEBARZEEKALE
TRE  BESRRSTKEERR
HibF AR H BIEN &= -

AEBEELRERRIREELSR
ARE UEERSERROFER
TRAERSRSEEKTFERIFE
AR K 2 oF e R R FE 2 F RS
T TRAEKBEREZZELCHE
REBELAE -

RBITREN  AEBREFFR
HRPBRBEALETEREEAR
BoptmE  AKERELFE
RERBER (BRFEERRE
E DA R B AN BR SR R H A FE A 5K0 i
FERFRIRRE - BRRERBELE
EBY KHAEERNBEMEEDS
0 BIE BEHRORA R -

R-ZZFTNF  AKEFRA_TE
NFZREE - BRHEEEKFZE
BFEEEHABRERLR - B
KFBZLE - AREAEEHIR
NPERZBEECEFEHAE - &
THED ARREEER - FH
HMESBREIHEEERNRLDE

5 e

29 Capital and reserves (continued)

(e) Distributability of reserves

)

At 31 March 2009, the aggregate amount of reserves available
for distribution to equity shareholders of the Company was
$408,258,000 (2008: $465,974,000). After the balance sheet
date, the directors proposed a final dividend of 28 cents (2008:
32 cents) per ordinary share and a special dividend of Nil cents
(2008: 30 cents) per ordinary share, amounting to $43,073,000
(2008: $49,226,000) and $Nil (2008: $46,150,000),
respectively. These dividends have not been recognised as
liabilities at the balance sheet date.

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and
services commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a
sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its capital
structure on the basis of a net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio.
For this purpose the Group defines net debt as total debt
(which includes interest-bearing loans and borrowings and
trade and other payables) plus unaccrued proposed dividends,
less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted capital comprises
all components of equity less unaccrued proposed dividends.

During 2009, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged from
2008, was to maintain a relatively low net debt-to-adjusted
capital ratio. In order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue
new shares, return capital to shareholders, raise new debt
financing or sell assets to reduce debt.
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H BFXEE(HF)
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29 Capital and reserves (continued)

(f) Capital management (continued)

The net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at 31 March 2009 and
2008 was as follows:

KT
XEE AAT
The Group The Company

B E 2009 2008 2009 2008

Note $'000 $'000 $°000 $°000
TBEE Current liabilities:
—ERERNEMERNZ - Trade and other payables 24 155,221 188,640 7,238 7,640
- RAERREX - Bank loans and overdrafts 25 14,518 38,942 - -

169,739 227,582 7,238 7,640
FERBBE Non-current liabilities:
—RITER - Bank loans 25 3,467 6,406 = -
B R Total debt 173,206 233,988 7,238 7,640
o BURME Add: Proposed dividends 11(a) 43,073 95,376 43,073 95,376
B BRERREEY Less: Cash and cash equivalents 23 (238,615) (276,633) (132,691)  (89,705)
EREE Net debt N/A 52,731 N/A 13,311
B Total equity 798,247 860,177 645,603 703,557
BB R B Less: Proposed dividends 11(a) (43,073)  (95,376)  (43,073)  (95,376)
HREEX Adjusted capital 755,174 764,801 602,530 608,181
BB FEEERE Net debt-to-adjusted
BAXLLE capital ratio N/A 6.89% N/A 2.19%

AR E REAEMNE ARG AR
BB AN 2 B AR ER S

R-ZEZNF=ZA=+—H " ' R&

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to
externally imposed capital requirements.

BRS S EYEE T E R E
VR BB 2 R - R R 7 5 4R
MR A A R -

As at 31 March 2009, cash and cash equivalents are in excess
of the aggregate of total debt and proposed dividend.
Therefore, net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio is not presented.



= —'-"lr-|

e

B %5 3R R M &

Notes to the Financial Statements

(B 5B BT #5591 » 15 LA % # 31| 7R~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

30 MBI R

AEBSHELEXRBBETLRESE -
MEBED ~ FIRMINER R o NEH TR
AEREMEBIRAREUNREER S
& (B o5 B i [ % AR (B &L B o

AEBREATIVMHEERERRRIER

o%

(@

Y 5 2 LB A0 DA IR 1
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AEEBFERRENREERR
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REEEHAIEZRERI - ERZ
EREZEETRS  EREXLT
EREARESFHETERETH
BiE -

AEBRAZZIEER XEE
FPzEMNEREE ﬁ@%ﬁZ%
BT %&I%ZL%HW/
TEFERR  MERE®) -

REFBEIBMEF RIELRITHE
R BFRRARMEENRZY
FoET - At - EEEAL A
TAREHF I EIEETEE
£ o

30 Financial risk management and fair values

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises
in the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group is also
exposed to equity price risk arising from its equity investments in
other entities and movements in its own equity share price.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to manage
these risks are described below.

(@) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
other receivables, listed debt investments and deposits with
banks. Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing
basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit
over a certain amount. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments when due and
current ability to pay, and take into account information specific
to the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. Trade receivables
are due within 30 days to 90 days from the date of billing.

Investments are normally only in liquid securities quoted on a
recognised stock exchange, except where entered into for
long term strategic purposes. Given their high credit standing,
management does not expect any investment counterparty
to fail to meet its obligations.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer rather than the
industry or country in which customers operate and therefore
significant concentrations of credit risk only arises if the Group
has significant exposure to individual customers.

Investments in held-to-maturity securities and placement of
bank deposits are normally with counterparties that have sound
credit ratings. Therefore, management does not expect any
investment counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.
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AEBEMAZZEERR ER (T
AR zEMNERR) REERE
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RMAZZEERRZE-FHE
BEENMH EFE220 -
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AEBARBEEERBEBTAR
ReElR BRAASERFEREY
REREEEFNENERZE
FREEERBESETHEAET
LEERKFHRAEBSARRNEREE
HHE) AEEZHRREHER
BRIRFERZRBESR K REE
SRR EZIER - AEREER
RARCHEBERAZRERZ £
EHRRETEMBEEZEE A
HREERE  UENEREHZR
BEEFK -

TRANARNEBRARRZIEITE
MBRBERTEMBABEREER
ZRBENINHE - BEEIHAT
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BRNERFEZNEMRK - LW
FE ARBEEAER ZFEGFH)
ARAEBRARRAIGEAMNKZ
RFERAHFE -

30 Financial risk management and fair values

(continued)

(@

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

The maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account
of any collateral held is represented by the carrying amount of
each financial asset in the balance sheet after deducting any
impairment allowance. Except for the financial guarantees
given by the Group as set out in note 32, the Group does not
provide any other guarantees which would expose the Group
or the Company to credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit
risk in respect of these financial guarantees at the balance
sheet date is disclosed in note 32.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other receivables
are set out in note 22.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the short term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands, subject to approval by the
Company’s board when the borrowings exceed certain
predetermined levels of authority. The Group’s policy is to
regularly monitor current and expected liquidity requirements
and its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and readily realisable
marketable securities and adequate committed lines of funding
from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities
at the balance sheet date of the Group’s and the Company’s
non-derivative financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on rates current at the balance sheet date) and the
earliest date the Group and the Company can be required to

pay:
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30 MBI A (@) 30 Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)
b) REBEZEE (&) (b) Liquidity risk (continued)
& The Group
EHRTRBFERE
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
- —E#E WEEE BEARER
B3Rl WEM RER ag R
More than More than
Within 1 year 1 year but less 2 years but less Balance sheet
or on demand than 2 years than 5 years Total carrying amount

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
$000  $000  $000  $000  H000  $000  S000  $000  $'000  $000

RITEZ  Bank overdrafts 12,617 20,089 - - - - 12617 20089 12617 20,089
RITEF  Bankloans 2074 19546 2,074 2493 1555 4364 5703 26403 5368 25259
[EMZHE  Bils payable 1,377 1,995 - - - - 1,377 1,995 1,377 1,995
[EREBEZ R Creditors and
Bt ER accrued charges 151,923 179,550 - 36 - - 151,923 179,586 151,923 179,586
[EMBEE  Amounts due to
INGIE: related companies 1,921 7,059 - - - - 1,921 7,069 1,921 7,059
169,912 228,239 2,074 2,529 1,555 4364 173,541 235132 173,206 233,988
AATF The Company
ﬁ%*ﬁiﬁiﬁﬁhui
Contractual undiscounted
cash outflow
—ER BEEER
g3 Fill pok | REE
Within 1 year Balance sheet
or on demand Total carrying amount
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
$000  $000 $000 $000  $000  $000
A EE Bills payable 1,377 1995 1,377 1,995 1,377 1,995
JE R EEHEB A Creditors and accrued charges 5,742 5645 5742 5645 5742 5645
R E AR Amounts due to related companies 119 - 119 - 119 -

7238 7640 7,238 7,640 7,238 7,640
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30 Financial risk management and fair values

(continued)

(©

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from long-term
borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates and at fixed
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair
value interest rate risk respectively. The Group monitors the
level of its fixed rate and variable rate borrowings and manages
the contractual terms of the interest-bearing financial assets
and liabilities. The Group’s interest rate profile as monitored
by management is set out below.

(i) Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile of the
Group’s borrowings at the balance sheet date.

xE The Group
2009 2008
ERMEY P BRI E% 4%
Effective Effective

interest rate Total interest rate Total
% $°000 % $°000

TR EEE Variable rate borrowings:
RITHEX Bank overdrafts 5.03 12,617 5.03 20,089
RITER Bank loans - - 7.23 16,650
12,617 36,739

EFEEE Fixed rate borrowings:

RITEX Bank loans 4.60 5,368 4.60 8,609
BEEE Total borrowings 17,985 45,348

iy BREREDMT

RZZEZAF=ZA=+—H -
BEMBEMEHRFTTE -
IR FA T RR100(EE2E
HEATEEHAER  HRBER
P RREB R, HEMD
84,000 (ZEZE N\ £ :
303,0007T) °

(i) Sensitivity analysis

At 31 March 2009, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, would have decreased/
increased the Group’s profit after tax and retained profits
by approximately $84,000 (2008: $303,000). Other
components of consolidated equity would not have been
affected in response to the general increase/decrease in
interest rates.
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30 MBI R (&)

30 Financial risk management and fair values

(continued)

(c FIZEmEE (&) (c) Interest rate risk (continued)

i)y BLRE oA (48)

LSRR DTN E 2 R
BgEM (RREEN) B4
BamzHEbaB oAl e E L Z R
FrEEE) - BREDNEREN R
EYPYNEERDLEE - UE
RAREFFEXAKRERFAEYL
R 48 E B {E 7S 5 18 | B 5 FE R
BT E - HREAKE
Rt B BARE 2 FEF Rk
TETEMEEZRES RN R
Rk - AEEZBEHREZEN (K
RE S ) BAR A a2 H A A
NZEERANANEKBEME
B Z MBS SR ARG e

(d) 5% m kg

AEEBRZINERBRERZREE
BEGEE RN AN INE
MEZEERS - sIBULERKRZ
sBEFrERET([ET]) BT -
R ARBRBRME ([JRF]
%) e

EREE (HBK]) BT MR
By EEEREMXTHAEERR
FIELERERY FE@FEAR
B URRETRAPIEEEER
Bl - A BBERR A5E
HREMEREZTES 2ER -

AEBZEEHNENER 2 ER
2B EHETE AW EER
B2 AEEBRT - BISAERENE
TRHE - Bt - EEBITAFEHA
SEZEEESREMERZINE
[2 B2 e

(i) Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits)
and other components of consolidated equity that would
arise assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the balance sheet date and had been applied
to re-measure those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to fair value interest rate
risk at the balance sheet date. In respect of the exposure
to cash flow interest rate risk arising from floating rate
non-derivative instruments held by the Group at the
balance sheet date, the impact on the Group’s profit after
tax (and retained profits) and other components of equity
is estimated as an annualised impact on interest expense
or income of such a change in interest rates. The analysis
is performed on the same basis for 2008.

(d) Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through sales
and purchases which give rise to receivables, payables and
cash balances that are denominated in a foreign currency, i.e.
a currency other than the functional currency of the operations
to which the transactions relate. The currencies giving rise to
this risk are primarily United States dollars (“USD”), Euros,
Pounds Sterling, Renminbi Yuan and Macau Pataca (“MOP”).

Given that the Hong Kong Dollar (“HKD”) and MOP are pegged
to the USD, management does not expect any significant
movements in the USD/HKD and MOP/HKD exchange rates
and considers the exposure to foreign currency risk in relation
to the USD and MOP to be low. However, management
acknowledges that it is exposed to fluctuations in the exchange
rate for the other currencies.

All the Group’s borrowings are denominated in the functional
currency of the entity taking out the loan or, in the case of
Group entities whose functional currency is HKD, in either HKD
or USD. Given this, management does not expect that there
will be any significant currency risk associated with the Group’s
borrowings.
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30 BT R (&) 30 Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)
(d) s EEE (&) (d) Currency risk (continued)

() HAEHINEE R ()  Exposure to currency risk
TRFINAEERADARE The following table details the Group’s and the Company’s
HEAMAR ZINERR @ 2% exposure at the balance sheet date to currency risk arising
INERE R AT ERE 2 B from recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a
REEXNBEUANERRANEE currency other than the functional currency of the entity
AN BEEFHEMES ° ) to which they relate. For presentation purposes, the
BREREENE®WAE HUR ﬁ% amounts of the exposures are shown in the original
IR MERFRBANABLESH currencies and with the net exposure shown in HKD,
ZENHRE R E BB KT - translated using the spot rate at the year end date.
1IN 2 B RTRIRE K Differences resulting from the translation of the financial
AEBZINGEEEMEEZE statements of foreign operations into the Group’s
W ABELEA presentation currency are excluded.

EY Bx 32 ARE HrE
United States Dollars Euros Pounds Sterling Renminbi Yuan Macau Patacas

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
000 000 '000 000 000 000 '000 000 '000 000

b3 1] The Group
FEY SR 30 R 2 A B YT Trade and other receivables 1177 125 1 i - - 1531 5 544 -
BeRHELEENM  Cashand cash equivalents 2,899 692 6 5 3 3 4TI8 6366 10490 2448
EREFRAMENZ Trade and other payables (169) (382 (65  (580) @n @) (13482 (11,140) (33) -
BENAZERR  Loantoassociate and

EiAE accrued Interest 4346 4306 - - = - = . - -
BERR Net exposure arising from

EERBR recognised assets and

FESE liabilities 8,253 5912 (458) (564) (44) (74 (1173 (4769 2,460 2,448
SEAY Hong Kong Dollar equivalent 63,962 46,021 (4,684) (6,943 (492 (7347 (8,135)  (5,2%) 2,387 2,375
X475 The Company
GRS R E f BT Trade and other receivables 2 - = - = - - - - _
ReRESZEM  Cashand cash equivalents 2,518 210 - - = - - - - i
ERENREMER Trade and other payables - 3y (188  (140) - - - - - -
S20FAZEFE  Loantoassociate and

EitHs accrued interest 4346 4346 - - o - o - 5 -
2R Net exposure arising from

EERBER recognised assets and

MiEEE libilties 6,866 4503 (135 (140) - - - - - -
SEE% Hong Kong Dolar equivalent 53212 35754 (1811)  (1730) - - - - - -
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30 MBI R (&)

30 Financial risk management and fair values

(continued)

(d) s#E B (&) (d) Currency risk (continued)

(i)

BREE DM

TRINRAKERANRE ZER
M 1& 0w M (R AR B ) B 4
BHERZAEAEE (KK

(i

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous change
in the Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits) that
would arise if foreign exchange rates to which the Group

ERARAAIESILES AT E has significant exposure at the balance sheet date had
RNER) MEAZNKEFHD R changed at that date, assuming all other risk variables
E&,ﬁ\‘r&ﬂ REHAE o R remained constant. In this respect, it is assumed that

CAEBREAEEITR the pegged rates between the HKD and, the USD and

/iF‘EJﬁ%ZF'ﬁZTﬂf’JE EETT
O ) W S E A M 2 P R
BREEEM -

MOP would be materially unaffected by any changes in
movement in value of the USD or MOP against other
currencies.

2009 2008
BE % HRBiE e & HER T
tH BIRRE EH BFRRE
(FER) BRZHE (T HMzx2®
Increase/ Effect on Increase/ Effect on
(decrease) profit after (decrease) profit after
in foreign tax and in foreign tax and
exchange retained exchange retained
rates profits rates profits
% $’000 % $'000
F. The Group
5 Euros 5 (196) 5 (286)
(5) 196 (5) 286
R Pounds Sterling 5 (21) 5 (303)
(5) 21 (5) 303
AR Renminbi Yuan 5 (340) 5 (218)
(5) 340 (5) 218

BREIMDREEREHRN
HEEADKRLE YEEAR
$$@KE‘€3 A%% A A& B T
tEREE (BREREN B
%EZ[ HBABEITT) 2

EE B B 180 N 2 BB & §F 52
@

"!:(\

e
&

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the instantaneous effects on
each of the Group entities’ profit after tax and equity
measured in the respective functional currencies,
translated into HKD at the exchange rate ruling at the
balance sheet date for presentation purposes.
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30 AT A (&)

(d) SM%m B ()

(e)

(i) BRREE oW (4E)

FRESMEBRRINEEEZ
EHCOARENAEAKREMN
HAYNEE A EAEE @R
SNERBRzEMTE  BRE
BEAFENHET ZREE
WAEEN 2 U R BT IR AR -
DI AN BIERIEINER 2B
BREBERAEBEZYEEE
WHREEZZ® -

R & B
AEBERAARDBEREBEES 2 L
TRARERMELEZREZESH 2R
B (2B &£ % 201/) ©

ETAKBEZ EmREBRE M
ETAEMAEEREA - BEASH
HEERSREMEMZESHEER
REMITFRERZRAZBRER
URAEERBESHFREE - B
BHABTIRBAKBEMKREZ R
BITENIMBERIEZ TILERE -

AEBEMAFLETREDFERY
REEME - ERBIDREBEEULD
ERZRARAEEMBEMER
ETEL —FMRETME - WINEE
AHEFFETMIRERAKE R KRR
ArEIZ B -

TRIRAEEZ B REEF (R
REHEF) AREE B H RS
BRLETREMS) 24 B 48
B (7 ok B R AR A 728 Bt B B A
SEARB) MELZ BOED -

30 Financial risk management and fair values

(continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(i) Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign
exchange rates had been applied to re-measure those
financial instruments held by the Group which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk at the balance sheet
date, including inter-company payables and receivables
within the Group which are denominated in a currency
other than the functional currencies of the lender or the
borrower. The analysis excludes differences that would
result from the translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations into the Group’s presentation currency.
The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2008.

(e) Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from
listed equity investments classified as trading securities (see
note 20).

Certain of the Group’s listed investments are listed on the Stock
Exchange and are included in the Hang Seng Index. Decisions
to buy or sell trading securities are based on daily monitoring
of the performance of individual securities compared to that
of the Index and other industry indicators, as well as the
Group’s liquidity needs. The portfolio is diversified in terms of
industry distribution, in accordance with the limits set by the
Group.

All of the Group’s unquoted investments are held for long term
strategic purposes. Their performance is assessed at least
bi-annually with reference to the performance of similar listed
entities and other information available to the Group, together
with an assessment of their relevance to the Group’s long term
strategic plans.

At 31 March 2009, it is estimated that changes in the relevant
stock market index (for listed investments) with all other
variables held constant, would have increased/decreased the
Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits) and other
components of consolidated equity as follows:
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30 MBI R (@) 30 Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)
(e) REREE (&) (e) Equity price risk (continued)
XEH The Group
2009 2008

AEER  HRBE AEERR  HERER
BN BRARRKRE ZzugnS EMNRRZ

() BizZzHE CRd) HBMze2
Effect Effect
Increase/ on profit Increase/ on profit
(decrease) in after tax (decrease) in after tax
the relevant and  the relevant and
risk retained risk retained
variable profits variable profits
% $’°000 % $'000
FARLHHREZ Stock market index
BHigE : in respect of listed
investments:
1B A8 & Hang Seng Index 5 41 5 106
(5) (41) (%) (106)
MmETER NASDAQ
REEH Composite Index - - 5 115
= = () (119)
hﬁ( RES>MIBRERTEHZEE The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous change in
AP NEFBELRLE I E the Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits) and other
J*E ARZBMmESZ ZIRERR : 7T components of consolidated equity that would arise assuming
BEASERTEE 2 AT EER that the changes in the stock market index had occurred at
BEBTHEAEBRMER BB the balance sheet date and had been applied to re-measure
mEEes AU HEMEHGEH those financial instruments held by the Group which expose
BAE TSy HEEERES the Group to equity price risk at the balance sheet date. It is
THEEE#ZERLHERBHART also assumed that the fair values of the Group’s equity
EBH2E EE —I BEEE) 2R o %Y investments would change in accordance with the historical
MR _FEENFFRAZERAE correlation with the relevant stock market index, and that all
AEHEAT o other variables remain constant. The analysis is performed on

the same basis for 2008.

2008/09 4R
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®

®

n

-
1

Ly

R-BPEAFR-BBNFZA=
+— B AR TAYNERA
FEALHENERZ SR -

ARFEE T
Tt A EE RS 19 20
5N R@EMESBF K TAE 2 AFE
BZETEARENBRE -

() &/H

ATRERERD 2 TRHE

AE S AEHBREIMR S K
K o

iy HEEFEEE

RFEEHESRKRERE
ZHE WREUMBTAZ
ER WIS A EAE -

@iy B EER

BHCHBERZAFEET
2EZRURBERFRSFH
WERRzER(MAESEBRE
FOEE S ENEXEZHEUE
7 A fdEt - AR E
EREERZIBERATETWERZ
ERMEXBELERRZBR
TEL AR ZME (e
AT EBER) -

30 Financial risk management and fair values

(continued)

®

(®

Fair values

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially
different from their fair values as at 31 March 2009 and 2008.

Estimation of fair values

The following summarises the major methods and
assumptions used in estimating the fair values of financial
instruments set out in notes 19, 20, 25 and 32(a).

(0

(i)

Securities

Fair value is based on quoted market prices at the balance
sheet date without any deduction for transaction costs.

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

The fair value is estimated as the present value of future
cash flows, discounted at current market interest rates
for similar financial instruments.

Financial guarantees

The fair value of financial guarantees issued is determined
by reference to fees charged in an arm’s length
transaction for similar services, when such information
is obtainable, or is otherwise estimated by reference to
interest rate differentials, by comparing the actual rates
charged by lenders when the guarantee is made available
with the estimated rates that lenders would have charged,
had the guarantees not been available, where reliable
estimates of such information can be made.
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31 & 31 Commitments
(@ R-ZZFEZEAF=ZA=+—H RE (@) At 31 March 2009, the total future minimum lease payments
THRBEZEREHEEAERENZ under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as
RIEHENHBEABUT - follows:
2009 2008
LIS Hith ES H
Properties Other Properties Other
$’000 $°000 $'000 $'000
XEHE The Group
—F A Within 1 year 103,340 1,454 115,507 1,733
—FREDLFA After 1 year but within 5 years 68,558 2,793 92,731 4,340
hF & After 5 years - - 13,978 -
171,898 4,247 222,216 6,073
LS
Properties
2009 2008
$°000 $'000
AXAT The Company
—F K Within 1 year 3,840 3,840
—FEHEBERFA After 1 year but within 5 years 3,840 7,680
7,680 11,520

BRARREBEEREZLHEE
FRELEMERAZLHZERXN
MELHFHNMEFE 148 -

BRZEHEIN  TNEBABHIBRL
EHERBZUERNRAERHE 2
EBA - BEHEE—RYIZ A —
E-F WEAEEEEINPER
B ERNAMBGKRHATEND
E °
BT AIBRR 2 ELCERE
AN ARE  EBBEHEL A
ETzEAHezE  HHEBWE
FRBWMAZI0%EIIN(ZZEE)N
F 1 12%ZE29%) WE - DL B AL
MEKEHECEBELTBEBAE
EEZHABEMAR -

Significant leasing arrangements in respect of land and
buildings classified as being held under finance lease and land
held under operating leases are described in note 14.

Apart from these leases, the Group is the lessee in respect of
a number of properties and office equipment held under
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial period
of one to three years, with an option to renew the lease upon
expiry when all terms are renegotiated.

Certain non-cancellable operating leases in respect of
properties included above are subject to contingent rent
payments, which are charged in amounts varying from 10%
to 31% (2008: 12% to 29%) of the monthly gross takings at
the leased premises in excess of the base rents as determined
in the respective lease agreements. The above disclosures in
respect of operating lease commitments for properties
excludes contingent rent payments, which are not committed.
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32 A B R

(@

(b)

ER

R-ZZTEZAF=A=+—H  &ARQ
AAMNBARMBERITEEMR
TEHRER A 5196,966,0007T (= F
Z \4F : 114,670,0007T) ° HARQ &
BHCERTERE - WIEEEZ
T HTERIBE(EEGTER)FE39
REERPEAREMAEETZTZ
AFEE AUEZEERTIEES
FHaBERTRAFTEETE -

REER  EFETRARTAE
BHEREARAAAEELR
B N8R AaapEd 2%
RemoBEAEEBRAWNB AT
2 $R1712 B %822,633,0007C (= &
= )\ £ : 39,156,0007T) °

&
AEBRERZWEB QR T % B
NAETHEEERZHE A
BRUHRELSFRAREZHR - &
HEAREEZZRBRZEXEFRE
% EEEREFTERR ZFR
EEEIRE BAKERRTYEHE
Ao R AEERMLZTRESE
BHREBAE BEERR RE(GE
BEEAER) FE 7R FE 28 [#E
KRBRERIAEE]  ME—F
BREC(E B G ER]) F 375 F 84K
EFQMMAERZEMBEERAR
DA ZF s e

32 Contingent liabilities

(@

(b)

Guarantees

At 31 March 2009, the Company has issued guarantees to
banks to secure banking facilities of subsidiaries amounting
to $96,966,000 (2008: $114,670,000). The guarantees were
issued by the Company at nil consideration. The transactions
were not at arm’s length, and it is not possible to measure
reliably the fair value of these transactions in accordance with
HKAS 39 had they been at arm’s length. Accordingly, the
guarantees have not been accounted for as financial liabilities
and measured at fair value.

As at the balance sheet date, the directors do not consider it
to be probable that a claim will be made against the Company
under any of the guarantees issued. The maximum liability of
the Company at the balance sheet date under the guarantees
issued is the amount of banking facilities drawn down by the
relevant subsidiaries of $22,633,000 (2008: $39,156,000).

Claims

The Group’s subsidiary in France is the subject of various
claims from certain former employees of the subsidiary relating
to their period of employment with the subsidiary. Having
considered the claims with the Group’s legal counsel,
management and the Board consider the claims to be
unfounded and the Group’s position to be meritorious. As such,
the Group intends to continue to vigorously defend the claims.
The directors are of the opinion that, in accordance with
paragraph 92 of HKAS 37, “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets”, it would be against the interests of
the Group to make further disclosure of the information
required by paragraphs 84 to 89 of HKAS 37.
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33 EXEBALTRS
BEAMBRELMBTAEELRS

Ko 4
TR

(@

ERON - AREEFTZ A TEREE A
% o
HERTHKRBERAR HHBELQA

g nm ((RIHKER])#ET
2R PAEINZ BB (KNAR
ETEFNRARARIAXREER
AEBEZZEERER -)WMT -

33 Material related party transactions

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere
in these financial statements, the Group entered into the following
material related party transactions.

(@)

Transactions with and amounts paid to Yangtzekiang Garment
Limited, its subsidiaries and associated companies
(“Yangtzekiang Garment Group”). (Certain directors of the
Company are collectively the controlling shareholders of both
the Yangtzekiang Garment Group and the Group):

2009 2008

$°000 $'000
N Purchases of traded products 44,103 40,845
& 7 Sales of traded products 4,976 594
FERMERE Rentals payable on properties 3,864 3,755
ERNEREE Management fees payable 804 804
ERNRXEEEE Building management fees payable 288 312
BeX Commission paid 805 -

(b)

SEERRBARKERRLREE
RPZEBRRGHEBIE=EFRN
BaRE 2 ERRIGEHFEE - B2
ENREH‘RZITH - EHERE -
ANE - ERRRARAMETE - G&t
REBRGMEN -EEEHER
AT RIBAEHRRSE 2K AEFiE
BRETE RIZXEERAEE
WESR LRRBILEFMERAS
) e

E1 YGM Marketing Pte Limited (3% 2 7]
HARBIETESFERER) &
T2 :

(b)

The purchases and sales of traded products and rental
transactions were, in the opinion of the directors, carried out
on prices and terms comparable to those offered to or by
independent third parties. The management fees were charged
for administration, business strategy, personnel, legal and
company secretarial work, accounting and management
services provided. The management fees are determined
annually between the respective parties after negotiations
having regard to the cost of services provided. Yangtzekiang
Garment Group and the Group have not entered into any
management contract in respect of the said services.

Transactions with YGM Marketing Pte Limited which was
beneficially owned by certain directors of the Company:

2009 2008
$°000 $°000
B Sales of traded products = 1,737

BEEFRREERE M BB RIGHE
BBV E=BERPIEZERERE
HiEE  BREFER_TTLF
+ — A i & H 7 YGM Marketing Pte
Limited 2 # &5 °

The sales of traded products were, in the opinion of the
directors, carried out on prices and terms comparable to those
offered to independent third party customers. The relevant
directors disposed of their interests in YGM Marketing Pte
Limited in November 2007 .
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33 EXFABALIRS (&)

(0 BEZEEZRKARAR(DEEE
RIDREMBAR (EEZERE
BETZRZET (ARA—%
EERARTMBRAZETES
ARREEERZEERRR)

33 Material related party transactions (continued)

(c) Transactions with Hang Ten Group Holdings Limited (“HTGH”)
and its subsidiaries (“HTGH Group”). A director of the Company
and certain directors of certain subsidiaries of the Company
are both directors and shareholders of HTGH:

2009 2008

$’000 $'000

BERERZFE Interest on loan granted 1,911 1,919
FEN RS B Service fee payable 93 244
ERWERS Rental payable on properties 536 615

FEFERRMERS BB RGN
BB E-—FRSNIRHEZERR
FRUEREE - ESEREEL &R L
MRBETLEMERAL -

REBE_ZTZENF=ZA=+—HI
FEAN ARAAZEEEREED
& Bt & 2 7] Efficient Sino Holdings
Limited ([ESH)) 2 # % - 8 RKE R
Z ot (2B & % 18(a)18 & % 33(d)
|) e

(d) REzsZREBWRE (R
533(c)’8) EESH(— [ A A2 7 i
BRARAZETESZHZAR %
BB A A3 A ESH R AR 25 ) s 17

The rental transactions were, in the opinion of the directors,
carried out at prices and on terms comparable to those offered
to or by independent third parties. HTGH Group has not entered
into any management contract in respect of the said services.

During the year ended 31 March 2008, the Company disposed
of its interest in an associate, Efficient Sino Holdings Limited
(“ESH”) to HTGH Group for a total consideration of $Nil, see
notes 18(a) and 33(d).

(d) Transactions with ESH, which prior to the acquisition by HTGH
Group (note 33(c)), was a company controlled by certain
directors of a subsidiary of the Company:

ZRZWMT ¢
2009 2008
$’°000 $'000
HEEX Waiver of principal loan - 7,799
NEERZFEB Waiver of interest on loan = 420

A ESHI 7 KRR (= - ESHR ZF
TZNE=ZF=+—HRRZALE
REREE B7,799,000T B EIEA R o
ESHZ HMRER IERESE 2=
LE B 5% FESHE ) 7FE R & & K
ESHA & B 7R #4588 & AN & [Z fE 1+ 7
BZHMH - 28MWiEE18@)ME °

During the year ended 31 March 2008, a principal loan balance
due from ESH of $7,799,000 was waived due to the poor
financial performance of ESH. The other shareholders of ESH,
all of which have granted loans to ESH in proportion to their
equity interests, also agreed to waive the payment of the
principal loan balance and interest payable thereon by ESH
for the year ended 31 March 2008, see note 18(a).
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EXHEABALRS @ 33 Material related party transactions (continued)

(e) RZZETNEFEF=ZRA=+—8EK (e) Outstanding balances due from/(to) related companies as at
() BAE R AT - 31 March 2009:

2009 2008
$°000 $'000

EU () RIT&K Amounts due from/(to) Yangtzekiang

EER - FH Garment Group, net 2,338 (2,790)
FERDEE R S B K Amount due to HTGH Group (289) (387)
Y EEERSE Loan and accrued interest due from

=Rl HTGH Group 33,681 33,834

HES AR REREERER 28 The outstanding balances with related companies are
TR BARREE - REEE190) unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand, except
THFTIF 55 2 FE WWESH N & & ¥ i & for the loan and accrued interest due from HTGH Group, the
ERREFHE BRI - repayment terms of which are disclosed in note 19(a).

() HIFEXEMBLARZRS : (f)  Transactions with non-wholly owned subsidiaries:
KEBz22EMBARRE TR Sales of traded products by the Group’s wholly-owned
BB Al EMmIHERARER subsidiaries to certain non-wholly owned subsidiaries and the
EHFTHBACBESESR ERBE related year end trade balances have been eliminated on
AERB R - consolidation.

BT st & H B 34 Accounting estimates and judgements

BEEsE14(c)~ 15 27 R 30E D RIH A A Notes 14(c), 15, 27 and 30 contain information about the

MIREME  BREE SBRDBRE assumptions and their risk factors relating to fair value of investment

RBBITAZATEEZRELERR property, intangible assets, share options granted and financial

HZ2ER - A THMAERCEME instruments respectively. Other key areas of estimation uncertainty

EHFEWAT : are as follows:

(@ EWRRNAEE (@) Impairment of trade receivables
WEBRABEREKER CREER If circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of trade
gmEE ZEEENRERA receivables may not be recoverable, the assets may be
[BRE] - mREBETEERE considered “impaired” and an impairment loss may be
(CEBETER)FE36% [&EHME] recognised in accordance with HKAS 36, “/mpairment of
EHBER BEURERCEEEET assets”. The carrying amounts of trade receivables are
HMELER - UFTHEET kB2 reviewed periodically in order to assess whether the
EALTREHREmMAENT - BIKER recoverable amounts have declined below the carrying
ZAREEEREREUEE LT amounts. The recoverable amount of trade receivables is the
HGREIMEEEFARREREMHELD estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
R - AEHEEAMETRZER rate of return of similar assets. The Group uses all readily
NETHEKESEAEER available information in determining an amount that is a
SR o reasonable approximation of recoverable amount.
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34 & b st & HE (&)

(b) B 7E
AEE2EREFE M - BHY
AREMHEZBRARERE 2 &
BRAE THEHNFEZERE
B -MEFEZ2EREEXREEREMR
FAERFE AEEERESE
FzERMMBBFEZEE R
BEFZEHREY  BEREWH
SRR RGBT AR - M EE 2z b
AT EAREF A ZER
% o

(0 BEEHEEE -HBEERZAKF
#

RIBEMEEI1NEME 2 TR -
RREREEFERRBAUKEERR
ZHBREEEREREBELR
HE A 2 B 18 DA 55 R 2R B aR T s
Mo AKREERBEFRZ REHR
AERERREEHRBREE -

3 EEBEHNKREBE_FFTA

FZA=ZT+T-—HLEEEEHZ
1&5T « R K2 BT aEE R

By 88
HE

BEAMBRERTIZHAH  FEGMW
NEEBEMZIAZR] - AR RRE
ZEER  HEARBRERARYBE—
ZETZNF=ZA=+—"BLFELER T
ARERBERERFRS -

AEBLEFEZFER - EAN L2
BREXERPR2ZE  2IBAISLE
AEBRREANZFTER] - FER R
REEAEERARAZRERENRY
BMRABRERTEZAREERIK -
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Accounting estimates and judgements

(continued)

(b) Write down of inventories

The Group performs regular reviews of the carrying amounts
of inventories with reference to aged inventories analyses,
projections of, expected future saleability of goods and
management experience and judgement. Based on this review,
a write down of inventories will be made when the carrying
amounts of inventories decline below their estimated net
realisable value. Due to changes in customers’ preferences,
actual saleability of goods may be different from estimation
and the profit and loss account in future accounting periods
could be affected by differences in this estimation.

(c) Deferred tax assets — future benefit of tax losses

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(r),
the Group has recognised deferred tax assets in respect of
cumulative tax losses as at the year end based on
management’s assessment that it is probable that future
taxable profits against which the losses can be utilised will be
available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity.

Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but not
yet effective for the year ended 31 March
2009

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a number of amendments, new standards and
interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended 31
March 2009 and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments, new standards and new
interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial application
but is not yet in a position to state whether these amendments,
new standards and interpretations would have a significant impact
on its results of operation and financial position.
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3 EHEMEMKHEBEZE_FFTN 35 Possible impact of amendments, new
F=A=+—BLEEEERZ standards and interpretations issued but not
85T - B R2ECTREE N yet effective for the year ended 31 March
ZRe | 2009 (continued)

gEoh - THIEIEA L g G BARRNUY B In addition, the following developments may result in new or
amended disclosures in the financial statements, including
restatement of comparative amounts in the first period of adoption:

WRELFFTHREERTHE -

Effective for

ERRTS accounting

REEHE periods beginning

iR on or after

(RS EINEIR (BIE) HERRDIE —TTNE-F—-B  HKAST fevised 2007)  Presentation of financial statements 1 January 2009

(BB EN)E20% (BHTA)  RERE “ETAF-F—H  HKAS23 (revised 2007)  Borrowing costs 1 January 2009

(BRI BREEN)F85% gy “EEAF-F-H HKFRSS Operating segments 1 January 2009

(FBUBREEAER (BIR) £HBaH ZEENELA—H  HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business combinations 1July 2009

(BBes e ER 23] GARBY  —FTEAFEA-B  AmendmentstoHKAS 27 Consolidated and separate 1July 2009
BBRE financial statements

ERBREE 2 RE “ZTAFLA-BT  Improvements to HKFRSs 1 July 2009 or

(2009%) “5-%2F-A-8 2009 1 January 2010

2008/09 F ¥
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Principal Subsidiaries

RZ=FFNF=H=+—H At 31 March 2009

TRENHEAKRENRE EEXAEBA

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which

FTENWHBARER - BB AIIAIN - i principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group. The
ERHmENSEEREE - class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.
BEUERARHAEZTEMBELAR (EFXRKMFESE Al of these are controlled subsidiaries as defined under note 1(c) and
10)8)  WEAEAEBEMPEMERLGAEIE »  have been consolidated into the Group’s financial statements.

RERERENE

Percentage of ownership interest

EERERKS/ %%Hz BF4T
Place of iftRaEy ERER e HREAT
HMHI/  incorporation/ Particulars of issued ~ Group's  Held by )
BIR  establishment and paid up/  effective the Heldbya
AE &R Name of company EEWY  and operation registered capital interest Company subsidiary  EE£E  Principal activity
SHEERAA Michel René Limited B HongKong HK$1,000,000 100 100 - REMER  Gament wholesaing
T2 andretaling
JERE (hE) Guy Laroche (Ching) Limited &% Hong Kong HK$2,000,000 100 100 - WKHER  Gamentwholesaling
ERAE £ andretaling
RIREERLF  YOMMarketing Limited &% Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 - RKHER  Gament wholesaing
% andretaling
YGM Fashion Limited ~ YGM Fashion Limited F#  HongKong HK§2 100 100 - WEBER  Gamentwholesaing
T2 andretaling
FEERAT Bentwood Limited &% HongKong HK$500,000 100 100 - WKBEE  Garment wholesaing
YGM Advertising Limited # YGM Advertising Limited # &% HongKong HK$100,000 100 100 - BEERE  Adwertising agent
YGM Marketing YGM Marketing M Macau MOP100,000 100 100 - WKEE  Gamentretaling
(Macau) Limited (Macau) Limited
RIEBRERLE  YGMClothing Limited A HongKong HK$200 100 100 - REBE  Gamentwholesaing
YGM Clothing YGM Clothing “HEBEL ™ Bilish Virgn Islands Us$2 100 100 - WKEE  Gament manufacturing
(Overseas| Limited (Overseas) Limited Be
BRI (%% YGM Clothing s mZ AR The People’s HK$25,900,000 100 - 100 KKEE  Gament manufacturing
BRAT (Dongguan) Limited £A Republic of China
BNFETIES  Guangzhou Vangtzekiang ™ FEAE ™ The People's RMB500,000 100 - 100 MEEER  Gament wholesaling
BRAT Trading Company Limited A8  Republic of China € andretaling
FHIEEERDE  YOMTadngCompany ™™ HZAR ™ The People’s US$1,000,000 100 - 100 RAHER  Gament wholesaing
Liited 11 Republc of China £ andretaling
HE(LE)HE YGM Marketing (Shangha) ** #E AR~ *** The People’s US81,000,000 100 - 100 AWXBER  Gament wholesaing
ERAA Company Limited LAE  Republic of China TE  andretaling
Michel René Michel René “RERT ™ Biish VirginIslnds U5$50,000 68 o8 - REMER  Gament wholesaing
Enterprises Limited ~~ Enterprises Limited kg ZE  andretaling
Luk Hop Garments Luk Hop Garments A Hong Kong HK$200 100 100 - WERE  Property investment
Limited # Limited # * HK$1,000 100 100 -
Sauash International ~ Squash International F&  Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 - WERE  Property nvestment
Limited # Limited #
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GEE { §: TR

Percentage of ownership interest

EERERRE/ 3582 B34F

Place of HEREAEN ERER e HWBAT
HBBI/  incorporation/ Particulars of issued ~~ Group's  Held by L]
BIR establishment and paidup/ effective the  Heldbya
AT Name of company @EWY  and operation registered capital interest Company subsidiary  EEEH  Principal activity
Aramis International Aramis International &% Hong Kong HKS20 100 100 - WERE  Properyinvesiment
Limited # Limited # * HK$100,000 100 100 -
RABBEERDA 4 FarFastGateLimted &% HongKong HK$6,500,000 9 9 - DERE Property ivestment
AEEERAT 4 Parahood Limited # &% HongKong HK$5,000 80 80 - DERE  Properlyinvestment
Trothy Company Limited #  Trothy Company Limited # &% Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100 - WERE  Properyinvesiment
YGM Printing Inc. YGM Printing Inc. RERL  Brtsh VirginIslands Usst 100 100 - EREBER  Ivestment holding
EE
BEZ2ZHERLA 4 Hong Kong Securty E%  Hong Kong HKS? 100 100 - REER  Ivestment holding
Systems Limited #
BAZ2DRERLA 4 Hong Kong Securty &% HongKong HK$10,000 100 - 100 HIBIREE  Provision of securty
Printing Limited # RIREDFE  prnting and general
husiness forms printing
Société Guy Laroche &~ Socigté Guy Laroche # EE France EUR1,239,000 100 - 100 EFRFT  Tademark ownership and
EREER  loensing, and gament
FRHE  wholesaling
YGM Studio Limied YGM Studio Limited E#  HongKong HK$21,060,000 100 - 100 BEER  Invesiment holding
**HK$46,800,000 100 - 100
YGM Consortium Limited  YGM Congortium Limited E%  Hong Kong HKS? 100 100 - REBER  Ivestment holding
GLEuropa SA. # GLEuropa SA. # A% Belgum EURG2,000 100 - 100 BERK  Invesiment holding
A B BT AT BRAR G SGEMARA - BLATSIERSIN

*

ok

73 5% EREELEARD o

All the issued share capital represents ordinary shares or registered capital except where noted by:

*

ok

IESP -

ok

Hkkk

Hkkkk

Represent 5% non-voting deferred shares.
Represent non-voting preference shares.

LATFRE -
YGM Clothing (Overseas) Limited /A F B4 & %7 o
A & & 482 K Michel René Enterprises Limited ©

SRR ARBTEAEMOERE -

In addition, the following represents:

ok

*****

YGM Clothing (Overseas) Limited operates in the PRC.
Michel René Enterprises Limited operates in Taiwan.
These are entities established under the laws of the PRC.

EWIFAREF SN EHMERNAR RS ECERH S MEEIER 2 MB AN BEREARMEEERERALEEEI G AR KA R
#4912.5% % 10.6% °
Companies not audited by KPMG. The financial statements of the subsidiaries not audited by KPMG reflect total net assets and total turnover constituting
approximately 12.5% and 10.6% of the related consolidated totals respectively.
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Principal Associates

RZ=FFNF=H=+—H At 31 March 2009

TREVEHAEENEERKEEFEAY  The following list contains only the particulars of associates, which

BoBERNTER principally affected the results or assets of the Group:
FREERNE

Proportion of ownership interest

ERTR  AREZ  B%49
fER% ERER fiA

Principal activity

Form of Particulars Group's Held by
EBRE business HRBI  Place of ofissuedand effective the
BEATER Name of associate %% structure B% incorporation paidupcapital interest  Company  FEEE
EEEELR Hang Ten Group FRAL  Incomorated BHEE  Bemuda HK$98,225,000 2048 048 RERR
ERAF Holdings Limited*
Hang Ten (BV) Hang Ten (BV) AT ncoporated  EBEX  Brtish Virgin 35103821 248 - RERR
BE  Idands
ILC ILC HABAL hcomorated  EEEX  Bitish Virgn J58639,830 2048 - REER
BB Iknds
Hang Ten Enterprises  Hang Ten Enterprises AT Incoporated ~ EEE X Biitsh Virgin 5850,000 2048 - REABRR
Liited Liiteg BE  Idands RxhE
RILEZRH Vangtze Apparel Tawan SR Incorporated 8% Tawan NT$100,000,000 2048 - HKEE
ERLA Enterprise Limited Ri%
Hang Ten Phils, Cop  Hang Ten Phils,, Cop~ #MA I Incorporated SEZ  Philppines PHP50,000,000 11.26 - RKES
Rit%
Hang Ten Enterprises  Hang Ten Enterprises A Incorporated % Singapore $6D1,000,000 2048 - RKEE
Pte) Lt (Pte) Ltd Rk
Hang Ten Korea Corp. Hang Ten Korea Corp. AL Incorporated 28 Korea KRW50,000,000 2048 - RKEE
Rit%
Hang Teng Enterprises Hang Teng Enterprises — EEMACE Incoporated  SHEZ  Malaysia RM500,000 2048 - RKEE
(M) Sdn Bnd (M) Sdn Bnd Rit%
ILC Trademark ILC Trademark HABAL comorated  EEEX  Bitish Virgn 5850,000 2048 - BEREW
Corporation Corporation BB Iknds fFRER
ILC (Hungary) Limited ~ ILC (Hungary) Limited M Incorporated FF| Hungary US96,400 2048 - FUEREE
HTIL Corporation, B, HTIL Corporation, BV~ BT Incorporated #%  TheNetherands  NLG40000 2048 - FUERESR
International Licensing International Licensing A Incorporated ZE  United States U5$10,000 2048 - HUERAR
(Calfornia) Corp. ~ (Calfornia) Corp. of America EREE
ERERLE HTEL (HongKong) &ML Incorporated B Hong Kong HK$2,000,000 2048 - RREE
ERAT Limited Rit%
ILC (Cyrus) Limited ~ ILC (Cyprug) Limited ~~ #MRAY Incoporated ~ EFHEH  COyprus Cypriot pounds 2048 - RAER
1,000
ERARAT Precise DeltaLimted ~ &EMALTL  Incorporated &% HongKong HKS1 2048 - REBRR
HTEL (Macau) Limited  HTEL (Macau) Limted S ¥ Incomorated 2R Macau MOP25,000 2048 - R%REE
Rit%
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Faggite
Proportion of ownership interest
BEAR  FKEZ  HFAT
HRRx ERER T
Form of Particulars Group's Held by
EBEE business HBHIL  Place of ofissuedand effective the
BEATEH Name of associate & structure ¥ incorporation paidupcapital  interest  Company  EEEH Principal activity
HTIL Holdings HTIL Holdings HMAT Incorporated HE  Netherands US86,000 2048 - RBEE  Ivestment holoing
Corporation N.V. Corporation N.V. Antilles
Hang Ten (Phis) ~ Hang Ten (Phils) HBAL hcoorated  KBEX  Bitish Virgn 850,000 2048 - REEE  Ivestment holing
Holdings Holdings B2 Ilnds
Corporation Corporation
Hang Ten (Ching) ~ Hang Ten (Ching) R hcoporated  EERX  Biitish Virgn 15$20,000 2048 - REER  Ivestment holding
Group Limited Group Limited B2 Idanos
LEREES ChangmaoTiading ~ #FMELL coporated  FEAR  The People’s RMB500,000 2048 - RXZE  Retal and wholesale
ERDE" Limited* Pl Republic of R#t%  of apparel
China
LEERES Hang Ten Trading HBAL hooporated  FEAR ThePeoples  USS2,000,000 2048 - RKZE  Retal and wholesale
ERAT" Shanghai) Limited" ERE  Republicof RiE  of apparel
China
Han Tong Enferprises  Han Tong Enterprises &AL Incoporated ~ EBEX  British Virgn USst 2048 - REBEE  Ivestment holoing
Limited Limited B2 Ilands
Merry King Merry King SRR ncoporated  EEZZ  Bitish Virgin US$1,200 1434 - REER  Ivestment holding
Investment Lig Investment Lid B2 Idancs
Ever Brave Holdings ~ Ever Brave Holdings ~ 3FMACTL Incomorated AL Bitish Virgin 35160000 116 - REER  Ivesiment holding
Limited Linited BE  Idands
BEEH(LE) ERER(LE) HBAL hooporated  FEAR  The People’s 1J38800,000 1165 - HAEB  Tademark lcensing
EEERRA"  EEERLA" AAT  Republic of HiE
China
ENmEEES  CGuanghouHangTen  EEMMIL Incomorated  FEAR  The Peoples RMB500,000 2048 - RXEE  Retal and wholesale
ERAE" Trading Limited™ gl Republic of Rit%  of apparel
China
ChiliIvestment — Chill Investment SRR coporated  KEZZ  Bitish Virgin US$100 2 2 REEE  Ivestment holing
Limited Limited B2 Idanos
BE-AEHEE  HeenSanJuNankd BRI Incoporated  $EAR  ThePeoples  RMB9,300,000 2 - REERAE  Manufacturing and
BRAF™ Pharmaceutical ERE  Republicof RA#¥  dstibuton of
Company Limited™* China Chinese
pharmaceutical
products
* BRUA ] SREERAE AR RAT E AR RSN - A RIFELETAREE -
* All of the above are unlisted corporate entities except for where noted by *, which is a company listed on the Stock Exchange.
o REARABBEREIEEFMEE -
- These are entities established under the laws of the PRC.
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AFEME
Five Year Summary

(LA 8 ¥ 31| 7R~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
$°000 $'000 $'000 $°000 $°000
E 3 Results
| Turnover 958,696 1,032,188 1,022,818 1,110,115 971,936
e | Profit from operations 140,456 144,699 101,571 102,515 88,724
WEYHEMHE Valuation gains/(losses) on

W=, (FE#8) investment properties 6,900 17,500 18,600 13,400 (13,000)
B & AR Finance costs (1,763) (4,366) (6,992) (4,729) (1,712)
JE 15 B & A A Share of profits less

s R B B losses of associates 22,422 32,140 21,252 34,099 17,072
JF4E & (BsZ) ~ Non-operating (expense)/

W 5 F B8 income, net - (453) - 45,589 -
Gl Profit before taxation 168,015 189,520 134,431 190,874 91,084
Fri8 & Taxation (23,496) (24,071) (14,387) (14,630) (11,616)
ZNE SRRl Profit for the year 144,519 165,449 120,044 176,244 79,468
B Attributable to:

AKANREZEE  Equity shareholders of
the Company 137,813 161,913 118,121 170,997 80,187

LERREER Minority interests 6,706 3,536 1,923 5,247 (719)
ZN SRl Profit for the year 144,519 165,449 120,044 176,244 79,468
EERAERE Assets and liabilities

EEE Fixed assets 182,629 209,462 223,108 200,888 181,375
EmREE Intangible assets 110,904 110,124 109,344 108,489 107,709
HEEER Lease premium 9,595 8,927 9,912 11,696 9,727
Bt N A S Interest in associates 70,622 85,317 96,864 128,150 109,962
HumiBgEE Other financial assets 51,183 43,175 42,893 35,128 34,642
EEIEE E Deferred tax assets 45,629 50,047 57,204 65,006 55,679
MEEEFE Net current assets 149,515 266,970 270,956 330,883 313,801

620,077 774,022 810,281 880,240 812,895

RITE X Bank loans (4,999) (60,905) (49,038) (6,406) (3,467)

ELEMIAAE Deferred tax liabilities (8,005) (12,467) (13,989 (13,657) (11,181)
BEFHE Net assets 607,073 700,650 747,254 860,177 798,247
BEREH Earnings per share
H K Basic $0.89 $1.05 $0.77 $1.11 $0.52
g Diluted $0.88 $1.04 $0.77 $1.11 $0.52
BERES Dividend per share $0.43 $0.45 $0.45 $0.75 $0.38
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